
Scrutiny Standing  
Panel Agenda 

1 

 
 
 
 
Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel 
Tuesday, 7th February, 2006 
 
Place: Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Time: 7.00 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer: 

S G Hill - Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01992 564249 Email: shill@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors J M Whitehouse (Chairman), A Green (Vice-Chairman), S Barnes, R Chidley, 
Mrs D Collins, T Farr, K Faulkner, Mrs R Gadsby and R Goold 
 
 
 
 

 
PLEASE NOTE THAT THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO ALL MEMBERS TO ATTEND 

 
 

 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 2. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)   
 

  (Head of Research and Democratic Services)  To report the appointment of any 
substitute members for the meeting. 
 

 3. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   
 

  (Head of Research and Democratic Services). To declare interests in any items on the 
agenda. 
 
In considering whether to declare a personal or a prejudicial interest under the Code 
of Conduct, Overview & Scrutiny members are asked pay particular attention to 
paragraph 11 of the Code in addition to the more familiar requirements. 
 
This requires the declaration of a personal and prejudicial interest in any matter before 
an OS Committee which relates to a decision of or action by another Committee or 
Sub Committee of the Council, a Joint Committee or Joint Sub Committee in which the 
Council is involved and of which the Councillor is also a member. 
 
Paragraph 11 does not refer to Cabinet decisions or attendance at an OS meeting 
purely for the purpose of answering questions or providing information on such a 

 



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Tuesday, 7 February 2006 
 

2 

matter. 
 

 4. TERMS OF REFERENCE / WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 3 - 4) 
 

  (Chairman/Lead Officer) The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has agreed the Terms 
of Reference of this Panel and associated Work Programme. This is attached. The 
Panel are asked at each meeting to review their programme. 
 

 5. BEST VALUE PERFORMANCE PLAN 2006/07 - SUMMARY VERSION  (Pages 5 - 
12) 

 
  (Head of HR and Performance Management) To consider the attached report. 

 
 6. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2005/06  (Pages 13 - 64) 

 
  (Head of HR and Performance Management) To consider the attached report. 

 
 7. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL MONITORING  (Pages 65 - 76) 

 
  (Head of Finance) To consider the attached monitoring report. 

 
 8. REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   
 

  To consider which reports are ready to be submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee at its next meeting. 
 

 9. FUTURE MEETINGS   
 

  To consider the forward programme of meeting dates for the Panel. 
 

 



 
1 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

W
or

k 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
20

05
/0

6 
Ex

tr
ac

t J
an

ua
ry

 2
00

6 
 IT

EM
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
R

EP
O

R
T 

D
EA

D
LI

N
E 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  C

O
M

M
EN

TS
  

Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ta
nd

in
g 

Pa
ne

l 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f N
ew

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
la

n 
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
06

 
D

ra
ft 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

t 3
0 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
06

 m
ee

tin
g 

C
om

m
un

ity
 C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
20

05
/0

6 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
5 

 

Fi
na

nc
e 

- B
ud

ge
t C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
06

 
Fe

es
 a

nd
 C

ha
rg

es
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
by

 P
an

el
 o

n 
8 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

5 
 

 
B

es
t V

al
ue

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 D
at

a 
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
06

 
(th

ird
 q

ua
rte

r)
  

Th
ird

 Q
ua

rte
rly

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
at

 th
is

 m
ee

tin
g 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

  
(S

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 b

e 
sc

ru
tin

is
ed

 in
 

ro
ta

tio
n)

  

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
06

 
P

or
tfo

lio
 H

ol
de

r a
nd

 re
le

va
nt

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 a
tte

nd
ed

  
m

ee
tin

g 
of

 P
an

el
 o

n 
8 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

5.
 

U
se

r A
ud

it 
Fo

cu
s 

an
d 

P
ub

lic
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

To
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

  
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
S

tra
te

gy
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
at

 3
0 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
06

 m
ee

tin
g.

 
 

 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

  
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

06
 

To
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
t t

hi
s 

m
ee

tin
g 

 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

Report to Finance and Performance 
Management Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel 
Date of meeting: 7 February 2006 
 
 
 
Portfolio:  Finance and Performance Management 
 
Subject: Best Value Performance Plan 2006/07 – Summary Version 
 
Officer contact for further information:  S. Tautz (Ext 4180) 
 
Committee Secretary:   
 
 

 
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 
(1) That the Scrutiny Panel consider the Council’s draft Summary Best Value 

Performance Plan for 2006/07; and 
 
(2) That the draft Summary Best Value Performance Plan be recommended to 

the Cabinet for adoption. 
 
Report: 
 
1. (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) The Local Government 

Act 1999 and the Best Value regulations require the Council to produce an annual 
performance plan. The Plan is required to: 

 
(a) summarise the Council’s successes in meeting its key priorities, objectives and 

targets; 
(b) show where these key priorities, objectives and targets were not met; 
(c) inform customers of the Council’s key priorities, objectives and targets for the 

next year; 
(d) publish the outcomes of Best Value service reviews undertaken during the last 

year; and 
(e) compare the Council’s performance for with that for previous years. 

 
2. The Council’s Best Value Performance Plan (BVPP) is produced in two versions each 

year. A detailed version of the Plan is prepared for the Government, the Audit 
Commission and other bodies involved in the evaluation of the Council’s performance, 
which is also made available to those who desire a comprehensive explanation of its 
plans and activities. In addition and in accordance with a recommendation of the Audit 
Commission, a short summary of the BVPP is also distributed to all households in the 
district within the explanatory leaflet issued with the annual Council Tax demands.  

 
3. The draft BVPP Summary for 2006/07 is attached to this report. In order to minimise 

costs and contain the summary within the Council Tax leaflet, the detail of the draft 
summary relates primarily to the Council’s main achievements for the current year and 
its objectives for 2006/07. Fuller detail on specific targets and performance will be set 
out in the full version of the BVPP to be published in June 2006. The full version of the 
BVPP will be developed in line with the thematic approach utilised in 2005/06 and for 
the new Council Plan, and will be reported to the Panel for consideration in May 2006. 

 Agenda Item 5

Page 5



 2

 
4. The Scrutiny Panel is requested to consider the draft summary BVPP and recommend 

its adoption to the Cabinet. The views of the Panel will be reported at the relevant 
Cabinet meeting. 

 
Reason for decision: 
 
5. To enable the publication of summary performance information within the Council Tax 

demands to be issued in March 2006. 
 
Options considered and rejected: 
 
6. No other options are available. In previous years the BVPP Summary has been hand-

delivered, but for the last three years production costs have been reduced at the 
request of members to enable it to be contained within the Council Tax leaflet. 

 
Consultation undertaken: 
 
7. All Heads of Service have contributed to the content of the BVPP Summary. 
 
Resource implications:  
 
Budget provision: From within existing Performance Management Unit budget 
Personnel: From within existing Performance Management Unit staff resources 
Land: Nil 
 
Council Plan/BVPP reference: Nil 
Relevant statutory powers: Local Government Act 1999 
 
Background papers: None 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: Nil 
Key Decision reference (if required): None 
 

Page 6



    

  

O
ur

 P
rio

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

 E
ac

h 
ye

ar
 w

e 
pu

bl
is

h 
a 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 P

la
n,

 to
 te

ll 
yo

u 
w

ha
t o

ur
 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
ar

e 
an

d 
ho

w
 w

e 
ar

e 
pe

rfo
rm

in
g.

 A
 s

um
m

ar
y 

of
 o

ur
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 is

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 th

is
 le

af
le

t. 
W

e 
w

ill 
pr

od
uc

e 
ou

r n
ex

t 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 p
la

n 
in

 J
un

e 
20

06
 a

nd
 y

ou
 c

an
 o

bt
ai

n 
a 

co
py

 b
y:

 
 W

rit
in

g 
to

 u
s 

at
:  

   
   

   
   

E
pp

in
g 

Fo
re

st
 D

is
tri

ct
 C

ou
nc

il,
 C

iv
ic

 O
ffi

ce
s,

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

H
ig

h 
S

tre
et

, E
pp

in
g,

 E
ss

ex
, C

M
16

 4
B

Z 
P

ho
ni

ng
 u

s 
on

:  
   

 
01

99
2 

56
44

71
 

Fa
xi

ng
 u

s 
on

: 
   

   
   

   
 0

19
92

 5
78

01
8 

E
-m

ai
lin

g 
us

 o
n:

  
be

st
va

lu
e@

ep
pi

ng
fo

re
st

dc
.g

ov
.u

k 
 C

op
ie

s 
of

 th
e 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 P

la
n 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
at

 o
ur

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ce

nt
re

s,
 o

r f
ro

m
 o

ur
 w

eb
si

te
 (w

w
w

.e
pp

in
gf

or
es

td
c.

go
v.

uk
). 

W
e 

ca
n 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
co

py
 o

f t
he

 p
la

n 
in

 la
rg

e 
pr

in
t o

r o
n 

au
di

ot
ap

e 
if 

re
qu

ire
d.

  
 O

ur
 C

us
to

m
er

 C
ha

rt
er

  
 W

e 
ha

ve
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 o
ur

 C
us

to
m

er
 C

ha
rte

r t
o 

le
t y

ou
 k

no
w

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l 

st
an

da
rd

s 
th

at
 y

ou
 c

an
 e

xp
ec

t f
ro

m
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l a
nd

 h
ow

 w
e 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
th

e 
be

st
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r t

he
 d

is
tri

ct
 th

at
 w

e 
ca

n.
 W

e 
w

ill
: 

 • 
C

on
su

lt 
w

ith
 o

ur
 c

us
to

m
er

s,
 li

st
en

 to
 w

ha
t t

he
y 

sa
y,

 a
nd

 re
sp

on
d 

in
 

th
e 

be
st

 w
ay

 w
e 

ca
n;

 
• 

B
e 

op
en

 in
 a

ll 
fin

an
ci

al
 m

at
te

rs
, a

nd
 a

lw
ay

s 
re

m
em

be
r w

e 
ar

e 
sp

en
di

ng
 p

ub
lic

 m
on

ey
; 

• 
C

on
st

an
tly

 s
ea

rc
h 

fo
r w

ay
s 

in
 w

hi
ch

 w
e 

ca
n 

im
pr

ov
e 

ou
r s

er
vi

ce
s;

 
• 

R
es

po
nd

 to
 c

ha
ng

es
 w

hi
ch

 a
ffe

ct
 o

ur
 c

us
to

m
er

s;
 

• 
B

e 
op

en
 a

nd
 h

on
es

t i
n 

al
l o

ur
 d

ea
lin

gs
, a

nd
 tr

ea
t e

ve
ry

on
e 

eq
ua

lly
 

an
d 

fa
irl

y;
 

• 
S

tri
ve

 to
w

ar
ds

 e
xc

el
le

nc
e 

in
 a

ll 
ou

r s
er

vi
ce

s,
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

e 
be

st
 

va
lu

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e;

 
• 

In
ve

st
 in

 o
ur

 s
ta

ff 
th

ro
ug

h 
tra

in
in

g 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t s
o 

w
e 

ca
n 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
e 

be
st

 s
er

vi
ce

; a
nd

 
• 

D
o 

ou
r b

es
t t

o 
ca

re
 fo

r t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t f

or
 to

da
y 

an
d 

fo
r t

he
 fu

tu
re

. 
 

 O
ur

 P
rio

rit
ie

s 
 O

ur
 M

ed
iu

m
 T

er
m

 P
rio

rit
ie

s 
ar

e 
th

e 
fo

un
da

tio
ns

 o
f o

ur
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

e 
to

 e
ve

ry
th

in
g 

th
at

 w
e 

do
. O

ur
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

fo
r 2

00
3 

to
 2

00
7 

ar
e:

 
 P

ol
ic

y 
Th

em
e 

O
ne

 
A

 s
af

e,
 h

ea
lth

y 
an

d 
at

tra
ct

iv
e 

pl
ac

e 
A

im
s 

• 
To

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
th

e 
sp

ec
ia

l c
ha

ra
ct

er
 a

nd
 

ad
va

nt
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

D
is

tri
ct

, a
nd

 a
dd

re
ss

 lo
ca

l 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l i

ss
ue

s 
• 

To
 a

dd
re

ss
 k

ey
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
d 

• 
To

 c
re

at
e 

sa
fe

r c
om

m
un

iti
es

 
• 

To
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 e
co

no
m

ic
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

• 
To

 a
dd

re
ss

 le
is

ur
e 

ne
ed

 
P

ol
ic

y 
Th

em
e 

Tw
o 

A
n 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

th
at

 li
st

en
s 

an
d 

le
ad

s 
to

 re
so

lv
e 

lo
ca

l i
ss

ue
s.

 
A

im
s 

• 
To

 e
ns

ur
e 

po
lit

ic
al

 le
ad

er
s 

gi
ve

 c
le

ar
 d

ire
ct

io
n 

• 
To

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 a
bo

ut
 s

er
vi

ce
 

de
liv

er
y 

• 
To

 p
rio

rit
is

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
• 

To
 c

o-
op

er
at

e 
an

d 
pl

an
 w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

P
ol

ic
y 

Th
em

e 
Th

re
e 

A
cc

es
si

bl
e,

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 

A
im

s 
• 

To
 id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
ta

rg
et

 re
so

ur
ce

s;
 re

al
is

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
• 

To
 p

ro
cu

re
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
 th

e 
m

os
t b

en
ef

ic
ia

l a
nd

 
co

st
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

w
ay

 
• 

To
 d

ev
el

op
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 s
ta

ff 
an

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

 O
ur

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
 O

ur
 w

or
k 

is
 o

rg
an

is
ed

 in
to

 n
in

e 
po

rtf
ol

io
s 

ea
ch

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

 a
 c

ou
nc

ill
or

 
w

ho
 s

er
ve

s 
on

 th
e 

C
ab

in
et

, w
hi

ch
 is

 w
he

re
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l m
ai

nl
y 

m
ak

es
 

de
ci

si
on

s 
ab

ou
t s

er
vi

ce
s.

 T
he

 n
in

e 
po

rtf
ol

io
s 

ar
e:

 
 • 

C
om

m
un

ity
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 
• 

H
ou

si
ng

 
• 

Le
is

ur
e 

Page 7



    

  

• 
P

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

• 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
• 

C
iv

il 
E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
an

d 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

• 
Fi

na
nc

e 
an

d 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
• 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
y,

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 S

up
po

rt 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

• 
P

eo
pl

e 
Fi

rs
t 

 Fo
r e

ac
h 

po
rtf

ol
io

 w
e 

se
t o

ut
 in

 th
is

 le
af

le
t w

ha
t w

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
20

05
/0

6 
an

d 
ou

r a
im

s 
fo

r 2
00

6/
07

. W
e 

ho
pe

 th
at

 y
ou

 w
ill 

fin
d 

th
is

 u
se

fu
l. 

 
 C

om
m

un
ity

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 

 O
ur

 C
om

m
un

ity
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 
m

ak
e 

su
re

 th
at

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t i

s 
a 

sa
fe

 a
nd

 h
ea

lth
y 

pl
ac

e.
 W

e 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 o
ur

 
pa

rtn
er

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
th

e 
P

ol
ic

e 
an

d 
th

e 
C

rim
e 

an
d 

D
is

or
de

r R
ed

uc
tio

n 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 to

 ta
ck

le
 c

rim
e,

 a
nd

 w
ith

 th
e 

E
pp

in
g 

Fo
re

st
 P

rim
ar

y 
C

ar
e 

Tr
us

t 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 w
el

lb
ei

ng
. 

 La
st

 y
ea

r w
e 

 • 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
th

e 
C

iv
il 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
ie

s 
A

ct
 2

00
4 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 

ot
he

r a
ge

nc
ie

s 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

an
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
re

sp
on

se
 ro

le
;  

• 
fu

nd
ed

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 s
ix

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 P

ol
ic

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
up

po
rt 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 fo
r t

he
 d

is
tri

ct
, j

oi
nt

ly
 w

ith
 E

ss
ex

 P
ol

ic
e;

  
• 

ap
po

in
te

d 
an

 A
nt

i-S
oc

ia
l B

eh
av

io
ur

 C
o-

or
di

na
to

r t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

an
 

op
er

at
io

na
l a

nd
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 a

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l b
eh

av
io

ur
 is

su
es

; 
• 

in
ve

st
ed

 £
55

,0
00

 to
 e

nh
an

ce
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
fo

r c
on

ce
ss

io
na

ry
 

tra
ve

l i
nt

o 
Lo

nd
on

 a
nd

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f p

as
se

s 
is

su
ed

; 
• 

be
ga

n 
to

 in
te

gr
at

e 
th

e 
E

pp
in

g 
Fo

re
st

 D
is

tri
ct

 L
oc

al
 C

om
pa

ct
 a

nd
 

C
od

es
 o

f P
ra

ct
ic

e 
th

at
 s

et
 o

ut
 th

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 c
ou

nc
il.

 
• 

be
ga

n 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 ta

rg
et

s 
in

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tra
te

gy
; 

• 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
a 

th
re

e 
ye

ar
 fu

nd
in

g 
ag

re
em

en
t w

ith
 V

ol
un

ta
ry

 A
ct

io
n 

E
pp

in
g 

Fo
re

st
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 a
 re

vi
ew

 o
f v

ol
un

ta
ry

 s
ec

to
r a

ss
is

ta
nc

e.
   

 
 Th

is
 y

ea
r w

e 
ai

m
 to

 
 • 

im
pl

em
en

t a
 s

ys
te

m
 fo

r i
ss

ui
ng

 b
us

 p
as

se
s 

by
 p

os
t, 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 re

du
ce

 
in

co
nv

en
ie

nc
e 

to
 u

se
rs

; 
• 

im
pl

em
en

t a
n 

en
ha

nc
ed

 s
ch

em
e 

of
 fr

ee
 tr

av
el

 fo
r u

se
rs

 o
f b

us
 p

as
se

s.
 

 

H
ou

si
ng

  
 W

e 
ov

er
se

e 
an

d 
co

-o
rd

in
at

e 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 n

ew
 h

ou
si

ng
 in

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t 

(e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 fo
r r

en
t a

nd
 h

ou
si

ng
 fo

r t
ho

se
 w

ith
 s

pe
ci

al
 

ne
ed

s)
, d

ea
ls

 w
ith

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s,
 a

ss
is

t w
ith

 th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

f p
riv

at
el

y 
ow

ne
d 

pr
op

er
tie

s,
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

e 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

ou
r o

w
n 

ho
us

in
g 

st
oc

k.
 

 La
st

 y
ea

r w
e 

 • 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 th
e 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 P

V
C

u 
w

in
do

w
 fr

am
es

 in
 a

ll 
co

un
ci

l 
ho

us
es

; 
• 

do
ub

le
d 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f p
ro

pe
rti

es
 c

ov
er

ed
 b

y 
ou

r f
re

sh
 S

TA
R

T 
sc

he
m

e 
fo

r h
ou

si
ng

 a
ss

oc
ia

tio
ns

 to
 le

as
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

to
 

ho
m

el
es

s 
fa

m
ilie

s;
 

• 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

on
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 in
tro

du
ct

or
y 

te
na

nc
ie

s 
fo

r a
ll 

ne
w

 te
na

nt
s,

 
al

lo
w

in
g 

us
 to

 e
vi

ct
 te

na
nt

s 
in

 th
ey

 e
ng

ag
e 

in
 a

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l b
eh

av
io

ur
 ; 

• 
un

de
rto

ok
 a

 P
riv

at
e 

S
ec

to
r H

ou
se

 C
on

di
tio

n 
S

ur
ve

y;
 

• 
en

ab
le

d 
77

 n
ew

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 to
 b

e 
bu

ilt
; a

nd
 

• 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

re
si

de
nt

s 
of

 o
ur

 s
he

lte
re

d 
ho

us
in

g 
sc

he
m

e 
at

 W
ic

kf
ie

ld
s 

in
 

C
hi

gw
el

l, 
on

 tr
an

sf
er

rin
g 

to
 W

ar
de

n 
H

ou
si

ng
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n,
 to

 e
na

bl
e 

a 
m

aj
or

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t s

ch
em

e 
to

 c
on

ve
rt 

be
d-

si
ts

 w
ith

 s
ha

re
d 

ba
th

ro
om

s 
in

to
 s

el
f-c

on
ta

in
ed

 fl
at

s.
 

 Th
is

 y
ea

r w
e 

ai
m

 to
 

 • 
im

pl
em

en
t a

 c
ho

ic
e 

ba
se

d 
le

tti
ng

s 
sc

he
m

e 
fo

r c
ou

nc
il 

ho
us

in
g 

va
ca

nc
ie

s 
an

d 
ho

us
in

g 
as

so
ci

at
io

n 
no

m
in

at
io

ns
, i

n 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 
fiv

e 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rin

g 
co

un
ci

ls
; 

• 
co

m
m

en
ce

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f e
ig

ht
 c

ou
nc

il-
ow

ne
d 

ho
us

in
g 

si
te

s 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
ab

ou
t 4

0 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
om

es
; 

• 
co

m
m

en
ce

 a
 m

aj
or

 £
4m

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t s

ch
em

e 
at

 S
pr

in
gf

ie
ld

s 
W

al
th

am
 A

bb
ey

;  
• 

co
m

m
en

ce
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 in
tro

du
ct

or
y 

te
na

nc
ie

s 
fo

r a
ll 

ne
w

 te
na

nt
s,

 in
 

or
de

r t
o 

as
si

st
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 re
du

ce
 a

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l b
eh

av
io

ur
; a

nd
 

• 
tra

ns
fe

r t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
sh

el
te

re
d 

ho
us

in
g 

sc
he

m
e 

at
 W

ic
kf

ie
ld

s 
to

 
W

ar
de

n 
H

ou
si

ng
, t

o 
en

ab
le

 a
 m

aj
or

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t/c

on
ve

rs
io

n 
sc

he
m

e 
to

 b
e 

un
de

rta
ke

n.
 

 Le
is

ur
e 

 
 Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

nd
 p

ro
m

ot
es

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r e
ve

ry
on

e 
to

 ta
ke

 p
ar

t 
in

 le
is

ur
e 

an
d 

cu
ltu

ra
l a

ct
iv

iti
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 s
po

rt,
 p

la
y,

 in
fo

rm
al

 a
nd

 o
ut

do
or

 

Page 8



    

  

re
cr

ea
tio

n,
 h

er
ita

ge
 a

nd
 th

e 
ar

ts
. W

e 
try

 to
 b

e 
re

sp
on

si
ve

 to
 th

e 
lo

ca
l 

co
m

m
un

ity
 b

y 
en

co
ur

ag
in

g 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 a
nd

 b
y 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
th

em
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 in

 th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f l
ei

su
re

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l 
ac

tiv
iti

es
.  

W
e 

pr
oa

ct
iv

el
y 

pu
rs

ue
 e

xt
er

na
l f

un
di

ng
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

in
 th

e 
fo

rm
 

of
 g

ra
nt

s 
or

 s
po

ns
or

sh
ip

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 e

xt
en

d 
ou

r s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

 La
st

 y
ea

r w
e 

 • 
un

de
rto

ok
 a

  c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

ex
er

ci
se

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

ho
w

 w
e 

ca
n 

en
ha

nc
e 

cu
ltu

ra
l o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s,

 to
ur

is
m

 a
nd

 re
la

te
d 

ec
on

om
ic

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 in
 th

e 
ru

ra
l p

ar
ts

 o
f t

he
 d

is
tri

ct
; 

• 
en

te
re

d 
in

to
 a

n 
ex

te
rn

al
 m

an
ag

em
en

t c
on

tra
ct

 w
ith

 S
po

rts
 a

nd
 L

ei
su

re
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t L

im
ite

d 
to

 s
ec

ur
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 n

ew
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 fi
tn

es
s 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
at

 O
ng

ar
 L

ei
su

re
 C

en
tre

 
an

d 
W

al
th

am
 A

bb
ey

 S
w

im
m

in
g 

P
oo

l; 
 

• 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
an

 A
ct

iv
e 

Fo
r L

ife
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 th
e 

lo
ca

l P
rim

ar
y 

C
ar

e 
Tr

us
t, 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 h

ea
lth

ie
r l

ife
st

yl
es

; 
• 

se
cu

re
d 

fu
nd

in
g 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

an
d 

in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
of

 o
ur

 s
oc

ia
l 

hi
st

or
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

co
lle

ct
io

ns
 o

f o
ur

 m
us

eu
m

; a
nd

 
• 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
n 

ex
te

ns
iv

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 fo

r c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
di

st
ric

t o
ve

r t
he

 s
ch

oo
l s

um
m

er
 h

ol
id

ay
s.

 
 Th

is
 y

ea
r w

e 
ai

m
 to

 
 • 

w
or

k 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 o
ur

 le
is

ur
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t c

on
tra

ct
or

 to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f f
ac

ilit
ie

s 
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 le
is

ur
e 

ce
nt

re
s 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
by

 p
eo

pl
e 

of
 a

ll 
ag

es
 a

nd
 a

bi
lit

ie
s;

 
• 

w
ith

 fi
na

nc
ia

l a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

fro
m

 E
as

t o
f E

ng
la

nd
 A

rts
, u

nd
er

ta
ke

 a
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 A

rts
 P

ro
je

ct
 to

 c
el

eb
ra

te
 th

e 
ru

ra
l c

ha
ra

ct
er

 o
f t

he
 d

is
tri

ct
; 

• 
w

or
k 

in
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 e

xt
er

na
l f

un
di

ng
 a

ge
nc

ie
s,

 th
e 

lo
ca

l p
ar

is
h 

co
un

ci
l a

nd
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 o
f, 

to
 re

fu
rb

is
h 

lo
ca

l p
la

yi
ng

 fi
el

ds
 a

t 
M

at
ch

in
g 

Ty
e 

in
to

 a
 v

al
ua

bl
e 

am
en

ity
 a

re
a;

 
• 

in
cr

ea
se

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t t

o 
be

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 

de
ci

si
on

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
ffe

ct
 th

ei
r l

iv
es

 b
y 

pr
om

ot
in

g 
ci

tiz
en

sh
ip

 a
nd

 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 lo
ca

l Y
ou

th
 C

ou
nc

ils
 a

nd
 th

e 
E

ss
ex

 Y
ou

ng
 

P
eo

pl
e’

s 
A

ss
em

bl
y;

 
• 

ex
pa

nd
 th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

to
 le

ad
 a

 
he

al
th

ie
r l

ife
st

yl
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

‘A
ct

iv
e 

Li
fe

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e’

; a
nd

   
   

 
• 

im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 th
e 

co
lle

ct
io

ns
 o

f o
ur

 M
us

eu
m

 a
nd

 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

ne
w

 C
om

m
un

ity
 O

ut
re

ac
h 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

   
 Pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 E

co
no

m
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

 W
e 

pl
ay

 a
 p

ar
t i

n 
cr

ea
tin

g 
a 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

an
d 

pr
os

pe
ro

us
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 fu

tu
re

 
fo

r t
he

 d
is

tri
ct

, b
y 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
he

ad
 a

nd
 e

nc
ou

ra
gi

ng
 o

r r
eg

ul
at

in
g 

ch
an

ge
 in

 
a 

ba
la

nc
ed

 a
nd

 e
ffi

ci
en

t w
ay

. T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

re
co

gn
is

es
 th

e 
ch

al
le

ng
e 

of
 

m
ee

tin
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t n

ee
ds

 in
 th

e 
m

os
t s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 m

an
ne

r, 
an

d 
al

so
 

w
or

ks
 to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
lo

ca
l b

us
in

es
s 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
an

d 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 o
ur

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
an

d 
th

e 
ru

ra
l e

co
no

m
y.

 R
es

po
ns

ib
ilit

y 
fo

r t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t s
ch

em
es

 tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

to
 th

is
 p

or
tfo

lio
 fr

om
 C

iv
il 

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

an
d 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 P
or

tfo
lio

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

la
st

 y
ea

r. 
 La

st
 y

ea
r w

e 
 • 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

 re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 e
nh

an
ce

m
en

t s
ch

em
e 

fo
r t

he
 

B
ro

ad
w

ay
 a

t L
ou

gh
to

n 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 fo
r 

an
 a

re
a 

ba
se

d 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
sc

he
m

e;
  

• 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 p
ha

se
 1

 o
f t

he
 L

ou
gh

to
n 

To
w

n 
C

en
tre

 e
nh

an
ce

m
en

t 
sc

he
m

e;
 

• 
so

ug
ht

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
le

ve
ls

 o
f a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 o
n 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t s

ite
s 

in
 th

e 
di

st
ric

t, 
th

ro
ug

h 
al

te
ra

tio
ns

 to
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n;

 
• 

fu
rth

er
 in

flu
en

ce
d 

re
gi

on
al

 p
la

nn
in

g 
gu

id
an

ce
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 fo
r n

ec
es

sa
ry

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 re
sp

ec
tin

g 
th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r o

f t
he

 d
is

tri
ct

; a
nd

 
• 

up
da

te
d 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n 
an

d 
co

m
m

en
ce

d 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
fo

r a
 

ne
w

 L
oc

al
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k.
 

 Th
is

 y
ea

r w
e 

ai
m

 to
 

 • 
co

m
pl

et
e 

ph
as

e 
tw

o 
of

 th
e 

Lo
ug

ht
on

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 e
nh

an
ce

m
en

t 
sc

he
m

e 
an

d 
co

m
m

en
ce

 w
or

k 
on

 th
e 

Lo
ug

ht
on

 B
ro

ad
w

ay
 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t s

ch
em

e;
 

• 
im

pl
em

en
t a

 re
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

of
 o

ur
 p

la
nn

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

; 
• 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 im

pl
em

en
t a

 n
ew

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 s

ys
te

m
; 

• 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

lo
ca

l l
an

d 
ch

ar
ge

 a
nd

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
tu

rn
ar

ou
nd

 ti
m

es
; 

• 
ta

ke
 o

ur
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 in

to
 th

e 
to

p 
pe

rfo
rm

in
g 

qu
ar

til
e 

of
 

di
st

ric
t c

ou
nc

ils
. 

 En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

 Th
e 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

po
rtf

ol
io

 c
ov

er
s 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 s
uc

h 
as

 
re

fu
se

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n,

 s
tre

et
 c

le
an

si
ng

, t
he

 re
m

ov
al

 o
f a

ba
nd

on
ed

 v
eh

ic
le

s,
 a

nd
 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
. L

es
s 

ob
vi

ou
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 th
at

 w
e 

pr
ov

id
e 

in
cl

ud
e 

fo
od

 
sa

fe
ty

, h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y,
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
en

er
gy

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n.
 

Page 9



    

  

 La
st

 y
ea

r w
e 

 • 
in

tro
du

ce
d 

a 
re

vi
se

d 
w

as
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t s

er
vi

ce
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 le
ve

ls
 o

f 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

to
 3

0%
 b

y 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 2
00

5/
06

, i
n 

or
de

r t
o 

m
ov

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 o

ve
ra

ll 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

ta
rg

et
 o

f 3
6%

;  
• 

fu
rth

er
 im

pr
ov

ed
 s

tre
et

 c
le

an
si

ng
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 in
 th

e 
di

st
ric

t; 
• 

as
se

ss
ed

 th
e 

hi
gh

es
t p

rio
rit

y 
co

nt
am

in
at

ed
 la

nd
 s

ite
s 

so
 th

at
 la

nd
 is

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 tr

ea
te

d 
an

d 
m

ad
e 

fit
 fo

r p
ur

po
se

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
re

cr
ea

tio
n,

 
pu

bl
ic

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

or
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t; 

an
d 

• 
ag

re
ed

 m
et

ho
ds

 fo
r t

he
 re

m
ed

ia
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

co
nt

am
in

at
ed

 
B

ob
bi

ng
w

or
th

 T
ip

 s
ite

. 
 Th

is
 y

ea
r w

e 
ai

m
 to

 
 • 

co
m

pl
et

e 
th

e 
in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ne
w

 w
he

el
ed

 b
in

 w
as

te
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
an

d 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
di

st
ric

t, 
w

ith
 th

e 
ai

m
 o

f a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 ta

rg
et

 o
f 3

6%
 re

cy
cl

in
g 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7;
 a

nd
 

• 
co

m
m

en
ce

 w
or

k 
on

 th
e 

re
m

ed
ia

tio
n 

of
 B

ob
bi

ng
w

or
th

 T
ip

, w
ith

 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

 C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
  

 Fr
om

 1
 A

pr
il 

20
05

 E
ss

ex
 C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

ok
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 a
ll 

hi
gh

w
ay

 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 w

e 
on

ly
 n

ow
 h

av
e 

di
sc

re
tio

na
ry

 p
ow

er
s 

ov
er

 lo
ca

l r
oa

ds
 a

nd
 

fo
ot

pa
th

s,
 a

lth
ou

gh
 w

e 
co

nt
in

ue
 t

o 
be

 a
bl

e 
to

 u
se

 o
ur

 o
w

n 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

fo
r 

tra
ffi

c 
ca

lm
in

g 
an

d 
sp

ee
d 

re
du

ct
io

n 
sc

he
m

es
. W

e 
al

so
 w

or
k 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

riv
er

s,
 s

tre
am

s 
an

d 
di

tc
he

s 
in

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t a

re
 n

ot
 li

ab
le

 to
 c

au
se

 fl
oo

di
ng

. 
 La

st
 y

ea
r w

e 
 • 

m
on

ito
re

d 
th

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 H

ig
hw

ay
s 

Lo
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t, 

to
 s

ec
ur

e 
th

e 
be

st
 le

ve
l o

f s
er

vi
ce

 fo
r t

he
 d

is
tri

ct
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 m

at
te

rs
 

su
ch

 a
s 

tra
ffi

c 
ca

lm
in

g,
 h

ig
hw

ay
 re

pa
irs

, a
nd

 p
ot

 h
ol

e 
re

in
st

at
em

en
t; 

 
• 

un
de

rto
ok

 p
ar

ki
ng

 re
vi

ew
s 

fo
r E

pp
in

g 
an

d 
B

uc
kh

ur
st

 H
ill

; 
• 

pr
ov

id
ed

 tw
en

ty
-fo

ur
 fr

ee
 c

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

pa
ce

s 
in

 W
al

th
am

 A
bb

ey
 to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
su

pp
or

t t
o 

lo
ca

l t
ra

de
rs

; 
• 

E
nt

er
ed

 in
to

 a
n 

ag
re

em
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t A

ge
nc

y 
in

 re
sp

ec
t o

f 
th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f w

at
er

co
ur

se
s 

th
at

 a
re

 li
ab

le
 to

 fl
oo

d.
 

 Th
is

 y
ea

r w
e 

ai
m

 to
 

 

• 
im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 a

gr
ee

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
so

lu
tio

ns
 fo

r B
uc

kh
ur

st
 H

ill
 a

nd
 E

pp
in

g;
 

an
d 

• 
un

de
rta

ke
 p

ar
ki

ng
 re

vi
ew

s 
in

 L
ou

gh
to

n 
an

d 
W

al
th

am
 A

bb
ey

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
fo

rw
ar

d 
pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r l

oc
al

 p
ar

ki
ng

 c
on

tro
ls

. 
 Fi

na
nc

e 
an

d 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
 Fi

na
nc

e 
an

d 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t i
s 

ab
ou

t f
in

an
ci

al
 a

nd
 q

ua
lit

y 
co

nt
ro

l, 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

co
nt

in
uo

us
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t, 
an

d 
th

e 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
to

 s
ee

 w
he

th
er

 o
r n

ot
 th

es
e 

ar
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

. T
hi

s 
po

rtf
ol

io
 is

 
al

so
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r t
he

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

of
 C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
an

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
 ra

te
s,

 th
e 

aw
ar

d 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 c
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

be
ne

fit
, a

nd
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 (n

on
-h

ou
si

ng
) 

bu
ild

in
g 

an
d 

la
nd

 a
ss

et
s.

 
 La

st
 y

ea
r w

e 
 • 

ke
pt

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

in
cr

ea
se

 b
el

ow
 4

%
; 

• 
be

ga
n 

to
 im

pl
em

en
t a

n 
el

ec
tro

ni
c 

re
co

rd
s 

do
cu

m
en

t m
an

ag
em

en
t 

sy
st

em
 in

 o
ur

 B
en

ef
its

 S
er

vi
ce

; 
• 

m
ad

e 
in

te
ra

ct
iv

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
fo

rm
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
on

-li
ne

 a
nd

 in
tro

du
ce

d 
a 

sy
st

em
 fo

r o
th

er
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 to
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

ou
r w

eb
si

te
; 

• 
in

tro
du

ce
d 

qu
ar

te
rly

 fi
na

nc
ia

l m
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rts

 to
 th

e 
Fi

na
nc

e 
an

d 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

; 
• 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
a 

te
nd

er
in

g 
ex

er
ci

se
 fo

r t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 in
su

ra
nc

e 
po

rtf
ol

io
, 

w
hi

ch
 s

ho
ul

d 
sa

ve
 in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 £

1m
 o

ve
r t

he
 fi

ve
 y

ea
rs

 o
f t

he
 n

ew
 

co
nt

ra
ct

; 
• 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 c

lo
su

re
 m

or
e 

qu
ic

kl
y 

an
d 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 th
e 

st
at

ut
or

y 
ta

rg
et

. 
 Th

is
 y

ea
r w

e 
ai

m
 to

 
 • 

ke
ep

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

in
cr

ea
se

 b
el

ow
 3

%
; 

• 
in

ve
st

ig
at

e 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ot

en
tia

l o
f C

ou
nc

il-
ow

ne
d 

ca
r p

ar
ks

, 
w

hi
ls

t r
et

ai
ni

ng
 a

de
qu

at
e 

pu
bl

ic
 c

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s;

 
• 

co
m

pl
et

e 
th

e 
sa

le
 o

f t
he

 p
ar

ad
e 

G
ro

un
d 

si
te

 a
t N

or
th

 w
ea

ld
 A

irf
ie

ld
; 

• 
up

da
te

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ris

k 
re

gi
st

er
 a

nd
 in

vo
lv

e 
co

un
ci

llo
rs

 m
or

e 
ac

tiv
el

y 
in

 ri
sk

 m
an

ag
em

en
t; 

• 
ex

pa
nd

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r w
hi

ch
 p

ay
m

en
t c

an
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

vi
a 

th
e 

w
eb

si
te

; 
• 

in
tro

du
ce

 th
e 

E
ss

ex
 M

ar
ke

tp
la

ce
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
or

de
rin

g 
sy

st
em

; 

Page 10



    

  

• 
im

pl
em

en
t a

 n
ew

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t d

at
ab

as
e,

 s
o 

th
at

 w
e 

ha
ve

 a
cc

ur
at

e 
an

d 
tim

el
y 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t o
ur

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

; a
nd

 
• 

ca
rry

 o
ut

 c
us

to
m

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

su
rv

ey
s 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

. 
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 T

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
an

d 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
up

po
rt

 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

 Th
is

 p
or

tfo
lio

 c
on

si
de

rs
 w

ay
s 

of
 u

si
ng

 m
od

er
n 

el
ec

tro
ni

c 
m

et
ho

ds
 to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y.

 C
or

po
ra

te
 S

up
po

rt 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

co
ve

rs
 th

e 
w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

up
po

rt 
to

 th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
le

ga
l, 

pa
yr

ol
l a

nd
 h

um
an

 re
so

ur
ce

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 

se
cr

et
ar

ia
l, 

re
pr

og
ra

ph
ic

s 
an

d 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

se
rv

ic
es

, d
em

oc
ra

tic
 a

nd
 

m
em

be
r s

er
vi

ce
s,

 a
nd

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 d
ep

ot
 a

nd
 o

ffi
ce

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n.

 
 La

st
 y

ea
r w

e 
 • 

in
tro

du
ce

d 
el

ec
tro

ni
c 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r c

ou
nc

illo
rs

. 
• 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
ou

r p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
in

 th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 e
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t f

un
di

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 w
e 

re
ce

iv
e 

fu
rth

er
 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t c

ap
ita

l g
ra

nt
s;

 
• 

in
tro

du
ce

d 
th

e 
el

ec
tro

ni
c 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 d

em
oc

ra
tic

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 a
ge

nd
a 

an
d 

m
in

ut
es

 o
f o

ur
 c

om
m

itt
ee

 m
ee

tin
gs

; 
• 

m
et

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
 d

at
e 

fo
r J

an
ua

ry
 2

00
6 

fo
r a

ll 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 in
te

ra
ct

io
ns

 
w

ith
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 to
 b

e 
on

-li
ne

; 
• 

fu
rth

er
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 o
ur

 re
cr

ui
tm

en
t a

nd
 re

te
nt

io
n 

st
ra

te
gy

; 
• 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 4

0%
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 u
nr

eg
is

te
re

d 
tit

le
s 

in
 a

dv
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 
co

m
pu

te
ris

at
io

n 
of

 o
ur

 la
nd

 te
rr

ie
r t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
gr

ea
te

r p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

fo
r o

ur
 

la
nd

 o
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

re
co

rd
s;

 
• 

up
gr

ad
ed

 o
ur

 le
ga

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
tim

e 
re

co
rd

in
g 

sy
st

em
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
an

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
fo

r L
ex

ce
l q

ua
lit

y 
ac

cr
ed

ita
tio

n;
 a

nd
 

• 
pr

io
rit

is
ed

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 th
at

 o
ur

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

an
d 

pa
rtn

er
s 

te
ll 

us
 th

ey
 

w
ou

ld
 li

ke
 to

 a
cc

es
s 

el
ec

tro
ni

ca
lly

. 
 Th

is
 y

ea
r w

e 
ai

m
 to

 
 • 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 ‘g

oo
d’

 p
rio

rit
y 

ou
tc

om
es

 fo
r E

-G
ov

er
nm

en
t a

s 
de

fin
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t; 

• 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fo

r o
ur

 
m

em
be

rs
; 

• 
to

 im
pl

em
en

t e
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r o

ur
 m

em
be

rs
; 

• 
to

 im
pl

em
en

t a
n 

e-
B

oo
ki

ng
s 

S
ys

te
m

;  
• 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 p

ub
lic

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

C
on

ne
ct

 (D
ire

ct
.G

ov
); 

an
d 

• 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
e 

in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 a
ss

es
se

d 
Le

xc
el

 q
ua

lit
y 

ac
cr

ed
ita

tio
n 

fo
r 

ou
r l

eg
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 th
at

 w
e 

pr
ov

id
e.

 
 Pe

op
le

 F
irs

t  
 Th

e 
P

eo
pl

e 
Fi

rs
t p

or
tfo

lio
 c

ov
er

s 
ou

r l
oc

al
 d

em
oc

ra
cy

 ro
le

, i
m

pr
ov

in
g 

ou
r 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

m
ak

in
g 

ou
r s

er
vi

ce
s 

ea
si

ly
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e.
 T

he
 p

or
tfo

lio
 

al
so

 c
on

ce
nt

ra
te

s 
on

 w
or

ki
ng

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 th

at
 

pr
ov

id
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r t

he
 d

is
tri

ct
. 

  La
st

 y
ea

r w
e 

 
 • 

Im
pl

em
en

te
d 

ou
r C

or
po

ra
te

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 S
tra

te
gy

; 
• 

pa
rti

ci
pa

te
d 

in
 th

e 
re

vi
ew

 o
f p

ar
lia

m
en

ta
ry

 e
le

ct
or

al
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

; 
• 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 th
e 

in
te

ra
ct

iv
e 

el
em

en
ts

 o
f o

ur
 w

eb
si

te
; 

• 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
a 

m
em

be
r r

em
un

er
at

io
n 

sc
he

m
e 

fo
r 

20
06

/0
7 

at
 a

gr
ee

d 
le

ve
ls

; 
• 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r t

he
 lo

ca
l i

nv
es

tig
at

io
n 

of
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
ag

ai
ns

t c
ou

nc
ill

or
s;

 a
nd

 
• 

in
tro

du
ce

d 
ne

w
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 o

ur
 

ov
er

vi
ew

 a
nd

 s
cr

ut
in

y 
fu

nc
tio

n.
 

 Th
is

 y
ea

r w
e 

ai
m

 to
 

 • 
co

m
m

en
ce

 th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 o
ur

 C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e,

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
; 

• 
re

vi
ew

 c
ur

re
nt

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r m
ee

tin
gs

 o
f t

he
 fu

ll 
C

ou
nc

il;
 

• 
re

-la
un

ch
 th

e 
tra

in
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
fo

r p
ou

r c
ou

nc
ill

or
s;

 a
nd

 
• 

in
tro

du
ce

 n
ew

 jo
in

t a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

t L
ou

gh
to

n 
Li

br
ar

y.
 

 W
an

t t
o 

fin
d 

ou
t m

or
e?

 
 If 

yo
u 

w
ou

ld
 li

ke
 to

 k
no

w
 m

or
e 

ab
ou

t o
ur

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

, y
ou

 
ca

n 
w

rit
e 

to
 u

s 
or

 c
on

ta
ct

 o
ur

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t U

ni
t o

n 
th

e 
te

le
ph

on
e 

an
d 

fa
x 

nu
m

be
rs

 o
r e

m
ai

l a
dd

re
ss

 g
iv

en
 e

ar
lie

r i
n 

th
is

 le
af

le
t. 

 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

Report to Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 
Date of meeting: 7 February 2006 
 
 
 
Portfolio:  Finance and Performance Management 
 
Subject: Key Performance Indicators 2005/06 
 
Officer contact for further information:  S. Tautz (Ext 4180) 
 
Committee Secretary:   
 
 

 
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 
That the Scrutiny Panel consider the Council’s performance for the first nine 
months of 2005/06, in relation to the Key Performance Indicators adopted by the 
Cabinet.  

 
Report: 
 
1. (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) As the Scrutiny Panel will 

be aware, a range of 40 Key Best Value and Local Performance Indicators (KPIs) for 
2005/06 was adopted by the Cabinet at its meeting in September 2005.  

 
2. The KPIs are crucial to the council’s core business and its corporate priorities, and the 

aim of the indicators is to focus improvement actions on key areas and to move 
performance against each into the top quartile of performing local authorities. Details of 
the KPIs for 2005/06 are attached to this report. 

 
3. Progress in achieving top quartile performance in respect of the KPIs is reported to the 

Scrutiny Panel and the relevant Portfolio Holder at the conclusion of each quarter, with 
the exception of the following key indicators for which little change is likely over each 
three month period, and which members have previously agreed be reported to 
Portfolio Holders and the Scrutiny Panel at year-end only:  

 
BVPI 2b (race equality) 
BVPI 11a, 11b, 11c (staff gender, ethnicity and disability) 
BVPI 14 (early retirements) 
BVPI 16a (disabled employees) 
BVPI 17a (ethnic minority employees) 
BVPI 106 (new homes on developed land) 
BVPI 154 (race equality in housing) 
BVPI 156 (disabled access) 
BVPI 199d (fly-tipping) 

 
4. Performance against each of the KPIs for the period from 1 April to 31 December 2005 

is attached to this report. Targets for each of the KPIs for 2005/06 have been revised 
from those originally published in the Council’s current Best Value Performance Plan to 
reflect top quartile performance, where this information is available. For the present 
time these targets are similarly set for 2006/07 and 2007/08, although these will be 
revised once the Audit Commission has published quartile information for 2004/05. 
Appendix 2 graphically illustrates current performance against each KPI and contains a 

 Agenda Item 6

Page 13



 2

key to the information presented, including the following ‘traffic light’ representation of 
current performance against top quartile targets: 

 
RED – The target is uncertain to be achieved or performance is below that for the same 
period in the previous year; 
AMBER – The target is certain to be achieved; or 
GREEN - The target has already been achieved. 

 
5. A total of 31 (77.5%) of the KPIs are monitored on a quarterly basis. Current 

performance for a number of the waste management and environmental indicators is 
based on estimates, until data is provided at year-end by Essex County Council, and 
the Head of Environmental Services has not therefore been able to provide a traffic 
light for these KPIs and will report accordingly at the meeting. Based on performance 
for the year so far, the overall position with regard to the achievement of top quartile 
status for each of the remaining 22 KPIs that are monitored quarterly is as follows:  

 
(a) 9 (40.9%) have already met the top quartile target (Green); 
(b) 10 (45.4%) are certain to meet the top quartile target by the end of the year 

(Amber); and 
(c) 3 (13.6%) are uncertain to meet the top quartile target by the end of the year 

(Red). 
  
6. The Scrutiny Panel is requested to consider the Council’s performance for the first nine 

months of 2005/06 in relation to the Key Performance Indicators. Heads of Service will 
be in attendance at the meeting to respond to any questions raised in respect of the 
indicators and performance thereon 

 
7. Performance reports in respect of all other Best Value and Local Performance 

Indicators have been placed in the Members’ Room. 
 
Reason for decision: 
 
8. To ensure that the Council monitors progress against its aim of achieving top quartile 

district council performance of 40% of its key performance indicators for 2005/06, and 
that proposals for corrective action are considered in respect of areas of current under-
performance. 

 
Options considered and rejected: 
 
9. None. The Council has previously agreed arrangements for monitoring progress 

against the key performance indicators. 
 
Consultation undertaken: 
 
10. The performance data and proposals for corrective action compiled in this report have 

been submitted by each appropriate Head of Service. 
 
Resource implications:  
 
Budget/Personnel/Land: The respective Head of Service will identify the resource 
requirements for any proposals for corrective action in respect of areas of current under-
performance set out in this report. 
 
Community Plan/BVPP reference: None 
Relevant statutory powers: None 
 
Background papers: None 

Page 14



 3

Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: None 
Key Decision reference: (if required) None 
 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



KPI

Reference

Responsible

Officer
Definition Comment

BV2b Tony Tidey The quality of an authority’s Race Equality Scheme and the

improvements resulting from its application
Monitored annually at year-end

BV156 John Kershaw The percentage of authority buildings open to the public in which

all public areas are suitable for, and accessible to, disabled

people
Monitored annually at year-end

EH6 Jim Nolan The percentage of licence applications processed within the

statutory period Monitored quarterly

BVPI Ref and

Officer
Definition Comment

BV11a Tony Tidey The percentage of the top-paid 5% of the local authority's staff

who are women Monitored annually at year-end

BV11b Tony Tidey The percentage of the top 5% of the local authority's staff who

are from an ethnic minority Monitored annually at year-end

BV11c Tony Tidey The percentage of the top 5% of the local authority's staff who

have a disability Monitored annually at year-end

BV12 Tony Tidey The number of working days/shifts lost to the local authority due

to sickness absence
Monitored quarterly

BV14 Tony Tidey The percentage of employees retiring early (excluding ill-health

retirements) as a percentage of thelocal authority's total work

force
Monitored annually at year-end

BV16a Tony Tidey The percentage of local authority employees with a disability
Monitored annually at year-end

BV17a Tony Tidey The percentage of local authority employees from ethnic minority

communities Monitored annually at year-end

BV157 Adrian Scott The number of types of interactions that are enabled for

electronic delivery as a percentage of the types of interactions

that are legally permissible for electronic delivery Monitored quarterly

BVPI Ref and

Officer
Definition Comment

BV63 Christine Sobey The average SAP rating of local authority owned dwellings
Monitored quarterly

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2005/06

Community Wellbeing

ICT and Corporate Support Services

Housing

Page 17



BV64 Jim Nolan The number of non-local authority owned vacant dwellings

returned to occupation or demolished during the financial year as

a direct result of action by the local authority Monitored quarterly

BV66a Christine Sobey Rent collected by the local authority as a proportion of rents

owed on housing revenue account (HRA) dwellings Monitored quarterly

BV164 Christine Sobey Does the authority follow the commission for Racial Equality's

code of practice in rented housing and the Good practice

Standards for social landlords on tackling harassment included

in 'Tackling Racial Harassment' code of practice for social

landlords

Monitored quarterly

BV183a Christine Sobey The average length of stay in bed and breakfast accommodation

of households that are unintentionally homeless and in priority

need
Monitored quarterly

BV184a Christine Sobey The proportion of local authority dwellings which were non-

decent at the start of the financial year Monitored quarterly

H15a Alan Hall The number of affordable homes completed and ready for

occupation during the year Monitored quarterly

H15b Alan Hall The amount of affordable housing required as part of Section

106 Agreements signed during the year for all large residential

development sites (in excess of 25 properties or 1 hectare),

expressed as a percentage of the total number of homes to be

provided on large residential development sites

Monitored quarterly

BVPI Ref and

Officer
Definition Comment

BV8 Peter Maddock The percentage of invoices for commercial goods and services

that were paid by the authority within 30 days of receipt or within

the agreed payment terms

Monitored quarterly

BV9 Robert Pavey The percentage of council tax collected by the Authority in the

year Monitored quarterly

BV10 Robert Pavey The percentage of non-domestic rates collected Monitored quarterly

BV78a Janet Twinn The average time for processing new claims Monitored quarterly

BV78b Janet Twinn The average time for processing notification of changes of

circumstance Monitored quarterly

BV79a Janet Twinn The percentage of cases for which the calculation of the amount

of benefit due was correct on the basis of the information

available for the decision for a sample of cases checked post-

decision

Monitored quarterly

BVPI Ref and

Officer
Definition Comment

BV82a(i) David Marsh The percentage of household waste arisingswhich have been

sent by the authority for recycling
Monitored quarterly

BV82a(ii) David Marsh The total tonnage of household waste arisings which have been

sent by the authority for recycling
Monitored quarterly

BV82b(i) David Marsh The percentage of household waste sent by the authority for

composting

or treatment by anaerobic digestion

Monitored quarterly

BV82b(ii) David Marsh The total tonnage of household waste sent by the authority for

composting or treatment by anaerobic digestion Monitored quarterly

Finance and Performance Management

Environmental Protection

Page 18



BV199a David Marsh The proportion of relevant land and highways assessed as

having combined deposits of litter and detritus that fall below an

acceptable level

Monitored quarterly

BV199b David Marsh The proportion of relevant land and highways at which

unacceptable levels of graffiti are visible Monitored quarterly

BV199c David Marsh The proportion of relevant land and highways at which

unacceptable levels of fly-posting are visible.
Monitored quarterly

BV199d David Marsh The year-on-year reduction in total number of incidents and

increase in the total number of enforcement actions

taken to deal with fly-tipping

Monitored annually at year-end

BVPI Ref and

Officer
Definition Comment

BV106 Stephen Bacon The percentage of new homes built on previously developed land
Monitored quarterly

BV109a Barry Land The percentage of major application determined within 13 weeks
Monitored quarterly

BV109b Barry Land The percentage for minor applications determined within 8

weeks Monitored quarterly

BV109c Barry Land The percentage for 'other' applications determined within 8

weeks Monitored quarterly

BV204 Barry Land The number of planning appeal decisions allowed against the

authority's decision to refuse on planning applications, as a

percentage of the total number of planning appeals against

refusals of planning applications

Monitored quarterly

BVPI Ref and

Officer
Definition Comment

BV170a Alan Clear The number of visits to/usages

of local authority funded or part funded museums and galleries

in the area per 1,000 population

Monitored quarterly

BV170c Alan Clear The number of pupils visiting museums and galleries in

organised school groups Monitored quarterly

Planning and Economic Development

Leisure

People First, Civil Engineering and Maintenance

There are no key performance indicators for these portfolios for 2005/06

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



K
EY

 P
ER

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E 
IN

D
IC

A
TO

R
 S

C
H

ED
U

LE
 2

00
5/

06
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
W

EL
LB

EI
N

G

B
V2

b 
 T

he
 D

ut
y 

to
 P

ro
m

ot
e 

R
ac

e 
Eq

ua
lit

y S
ee

 B
el

ow

O
ut

tu
rn

Ta
rg

et
 

D
C

 T
op

  Q
ua

rt
ile

A
ll 

En
gl

an
d 

To
p 

 
Q

ua
rt

ile
 2

00
2/

03
 2

00
3/

04
0%

0%
55

%
63

%
 2

00
4/

05
42

%
42

%
55

%
63

%
 2

00
5/

06
 Q

3
42

%
55

%
55

%
63

%
 2

00
6/

07
55

%
R

ed
A

m
be

r
G

re
en

 2
00

7/
08

55
%

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f a
n 

A
ut

ho
rit

y'
s 

R
ac

e 
E

qu
al

ity
 S

ch
em

e 
(R

E
S

) a
nd

 th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 re
su

lti
ng

 fr
om

 it
s 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n.

Pu
rp

os
e

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
ha

ve
 m

ad
e 

a 
hi

gh
 q

ua
lit

y 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 th
e 

R
ac

e 
E

qu
al

ity
 D

ut
y,

 w
ith

 c
le

ar
 ra

ce
 e

qu
al

ity
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t.

C
om

m
en

t o
n 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

/ta
rg

et
 - 

O
U

TT
U

R
N

 F
IG

U
R

E
 R

E
P

O
R

TE
D

 A
N

N
U

A
LL

Y

C
or

re
ct

iv
e 

ac
tio

n 
pr

op
os

ed
 (i

f r
eq

ui
re

d)
 

S
te

ps
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 b
ei

ng
 ta

ke
n 

to
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 a
ll 

ra
ce

 e
qu

al
ity

 im
pa

ct
 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 a
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

un
de

r t
he

 R
ac

e 
R

el
at

io
ns

 A
m

en
dm

en
t A

ct
.

Tr
af

fic
 

Li
gh

t
42

%

0%

42%

42%42
%

55
%

55
%

55
%

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

 2
00

2/
03

 2
00

3/
04

 2
00

4/
05

 2
00

5/
06

Q
3

 2
00

6/
07

 2
00

7/
08

O
ut

tu
rn

Ta
rg

et
 

D
C

 T
op

  Q
ua

rti
le

A
ll 

E
ng

la
nd

 T
op

  Q
ua

rti
le

FI
N

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 P

E
R

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T 
O

V
E

R
V

IE
W

 A
N

D
 S

C
R

U
TI

N
Y

 S
TA

N
D

IN
G

 P
A

N
E

L 
27

/0
1/

06

Page 21



K
EY

 P
ER

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E 
IN

D
IC

A
TO

R
 S

C
H

ED
U

LE
 2

00
5/

06
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
W

EL
LB

EI
N

G

B
V1

56
  B

ui
ld

in
gs

 A
cc

es
si

bl
e 

to
 P

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 a

 D
is

ab
ili

ty

S
ee

 B
el

ow

O
ut

tu
rn

Ta
rg

et
 

D
C

 T
op

  Q
ua

rt
ile

A
ll 

En
gl

an
d 

To
p 

 
Q

ua
rt

ile
 2

00
2/

03
76

.9
%

76
.9

%
 2

00
3/

04
76

.9
%

84
.6

%
57

%
64

.8
3%

 2
00

4/
05

76
.9

%
76

.9
%

57
%

64
.8

3%

 2
00

5/
06

 Q
3

76
.9

%
57

.0
%

57
%

64
.8

3%

 2
00

6/
07

57
.0

%
R

ed
A

m
be

r
G

re
en

 2
00

7/
08

57
.0

%

It 
is

 u
nl

ik
el

y 
th

at
 th

e 
fig

ur
e 

w
ill

 c
ha

ng
e 

at
 p

re
se

nt
.  

To
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
w

ou
ld

 in
vo

lv
e 

ca
rr

yi
ng

 o
ut

 w
or

ks
 a

t E
pp

in
g 

S
po

rts
 C

en
tre

, O
ng

ar
 S

po
rts

 C
en

tre
 

an
d 

W
al

th
am

 A
bb

ey
 S

po
rts

 C
en

tre
.  

It 
is

 u
nl

ik
el

y 
th

at
 m

aj
or

 a
cc

es
s 

w
or

ks
 w

ill
 

be
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t a
t t

he
se

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 a
s 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 o

f E
pp

in
g 

S
po

rts
 C

en
tre

 is
 u

nd
er

 
m

em
be

r r
ev

ie
w

, O
ng

ar
 L

ei
su

re
 C

en
tre

 is
 a

w
ai

tin
g 

a 
ne

w
 e

xt
en

si
on

 (w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

di
sa

bl
ed

 a
cc

es
s)

 a
nd

 th
at

 W
al

th
am

 A
bb

ey
 S

po
rts

 C
en

tre
 is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 
be

 h
an

de
d 

ba
ck

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
/ K

in
g 

H
ar

ol
d 

S
ch

oo
l a

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f t

he
 

jo
in

t u
se

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t i

n 
20

07
.  

It 
w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

're
as

on
ab

le
' a

t t
hi

s 
tim

e 
fo

r t
he

 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 c
om

m
it 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 th
es

e 
bu

ild
in

gs
 w

ith
 th

es
e 

un
ce

rta
in

tie
s.

Tr
af

fic
 

Li
gh

t
76

.9
0%

C
om

m
en

t o
n 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

/ta
rg

et
 - 

O
U

TT
U

R
N

 F
IG

U
R

E
 R

E
P

O
R

TE
D

 A
N

N
U

A
LL

Y

C
or

re
ct

iv
e 

ac
tio

n 
pr

op
os

ed
 (i

f r
eq

ui
re

d)
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f a
ut

ho
rit

y 
bu

ild
in

gs
 o

pe
n 

to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 in
 w

hi
ch

 a
ll 

pu
bl

ic
 

ar
ea

s 
ar

e 
su

ita
bl

e 
fo

r, 
an

d 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 to
, d

is
ab

le
d 

pe
op

le
. 

Pu
rp

os
e

To
 m

on
ito

r t
he

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

f a
cc

es
s 

to
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

bu
ild

in
gs

 fo
r d

is
ab

le
d 

pe
op

le
.

76.9%

76.9%

76.9%

76.9%

57
.0

%
57

.0
%

57
.0

%

76
.9

%

84
.6

%

76
.9

%

0.
0%

10
.0

%

20
.0

%

30
.0

%

40
.0

%

50
.0

%

60
.0

%

70
.0

%

80
.0

%

90
.0

%

 2
00

2/
03

 2
00

3/
04

 2
00

4/
05

 2
00

5/
06

Q
3

 2
00

6/
07

 2
00

7/
08

O
ut

tu
rn

Ta
rg

et
 

D
C

 T
op

  Q
ua

rti
le

A
ll 

E
ng

la
nd

 T
op

  Q
ua

rti
le

FI
N

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 P

E
R

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T 
O

V
E

R
V

IE
W

 A
N

D
 S

C
R

U
TI

N
Y

 S
TA

N
D

IN
G

 P
A

N
E

L 
27

/0
1/

06

Page 22



K
EY

 P
ER

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E 
IN

D
IC

A
TO

R
 S

C
H

ED
U

LE
 2

00
5/

06
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
W

EL
LB

EI
N

G

EH
6 

Pr
oc

es
s 

al
l l

ic
en

ce
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

st
at

ut
or

y 
pe

rio
d

S
ee

 B
el

ow

O
ut

tu
rn

Ta
rg

et
 

D
C

 T
op

  Q
ua

rt
ile

A
ll 

En
gl

an
d 

To
p 

 
Q

ua
rt

ile
 2

00
2/

03
 2

00
3/

04
N

/A
N

/A
 2

00
4/

05
N

/A
N

/A
 2

00
5/

06
 Q

3
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
N

/A
N

/A
 2

00
6/

07
10

0.
0%

R
ed

A
m

be
r

G
re

en
 2

00
7/

08
10

0.
0%

0

Tr
af

fic
 

Li
gh

t
10

0%

C
om

m
en

t o
n 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

/ta
rg

et
 - 

0

C
or

re
ct

iv
e 

ac
tio

n 
pr

op
os

ed
 (i

f r
eq

ui
re

d)
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f l
ic

en
ce

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 re
ce

iv
ed

 th
at

 w
er

e 
pr

oc
es

se
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 ti
m

es
ca

le

Pu
rp

os
e

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
pr

om
pt

 d
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 li

ce
nc

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%

100.0%

0.
0%

20
.0

%

40
.0

%

60
.0

%

80
.0

%

10
0.

0%

12
0.

0%

 2
00

2/
03

 2
00

3/
04

 2
00

4/
05

 2
00

5/
06

Q
3

 2
00

6/
07

 2
00

7/
08

O
ut

tu
rn

Ta
rg

et
 

FI
N

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 P

E
R

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T 
O

V
E

R
V

IE
W

 A
N

D
 S

C
R

U
TI

N
Y

 S
TA

N
D

IN
G

 P
A

N
E

L 
27

/0
1/

06

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

H
E

A
L

T
H

B
V

8
2
a
(i

)
H

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

W
a
s
te

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
(R

e
c
y
c
li
n

g
)

(N
E

W
)

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3

2
0
0
3
/0

4
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
4
/0

5
N

e
w

N
/A

N
/A

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
1
7
.4

1
%

2
0
.0

0
%

N
/A

N
/A

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
5
.0

0
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
6
.0

0
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

D
u
e
 t

o
d
e
la

y
s

in
re

c
e
ip

t
o
f

d
a
ta

a
n
d
 t

o
e
n
s
u
re

w
h
o
le

q
u
a
rt

e
r

fi
g
u
re

s
a
re

p
ro

v
id

e
d
,

s
o
m

e
d
a
ta

is
e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
b
y

a
p
ro

ra
ta

m
e
th

o
d
. 

T
h
e

o
n
ly

fu
ll
y

a
u
d
it
e
d

fi
g
u
re

is
a
v
a
il
a
b
le

a
t

y
e
a
r

e
n
d

p
ro

v
id

e
d

b
y

E
s
s
e
x

C
o
u
n
ty

C
o
u
n
c
il
. 

T
ra

ff
ic

li
g
h
t

to
b
e

re
p
o
rt

e
d

a
t

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
.

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

w
a
s
te

a
ri

s
in

g
s

w
h
ic

h
h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

s
e
n
t

b
y
 t

h
e

A
u
th

o
ri

ty
fo

r
re

c
y
c
li
n
g
.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
h
is

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
to

g
e
th

e
r

w
it
h

B
V

8
2
b

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
e
a
c
h

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
's

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t

a
g
a
in

s
t

it
s

s
ta

tu
to

ry
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
fo

r
re

c
y
c
li
n
g

a
n
d

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

w
a
s
te

. 
T

h
is

is
a

k
e
y

m
e
a
s
u
re

o
f

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
'

p
ro

g
re

s
s

in
m

o
v
in

g
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

w
a
s
te

u
p
 t

h
e

h
ie

ra
rc

h
y
,

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t'
s

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l
s
tr

a
te

g
y

fo
r

w
a
s
te

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

T
h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

e
x
p
e
c
ts

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
 t

o
m

a
x
im

is
e
 t

h
e

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

w
a
s
te

re
c
y
c
le

d
.

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

0.00%

17.41%

2
0
.0

0
%

2
5
.0

0
%

2
6
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

5
.0

0
%

1
0
.0

0
%

1
5
.0

0
%

2
0
.0

0
%

2
5
.0

0
%

3
0
.0

0
%

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
2
7
/0

1
/0

6

Page 25



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

H
E

A
L

T
H

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3

2
0
0
3
/0

4
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
4
/0

5
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
7
0
2
4
.3

5
1
0
0
0
0
.0

0
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
6
/0

7
1
2
5
0
0
.0

0
R

e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
1
3
0
0
0
.0

0

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

B
V

8
2
a
(i

i)
H

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

W
a
s
te

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
(R

e
c
y
c
li
n

g
)

(N
E

W
).

T
h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
to

n
n
a
g
e

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

w
a
s
te

a
ri

s
in

g
s

w
h
ic

h
h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

s
e
n
t

b
y
 t

h
e

a
u
th

o
ri

ty
fo

r
re

c
y
c
li
n
g
.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
h
is

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
to

g
e
th

e
r

w
it
h

B
V

8
2
b

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
e
a
c
h

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
's

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t

a
g
a
in

s
t

it
s

s
ta

tu
to

ry
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
fo

r
re

c
y
c
li
n
g

a
n
d

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

w
a
s
te

. 
T

h
is

is
a

k
e
y

m
e
a
s
u
re

o
f

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
'

p
ro

g
re

s
s

in
m

o
v
in

g
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

w
a
s
te

u
p
 t

h
e

h
ie

ra
rc

h
y
,

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t'
s

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l
s
tr

a
te

g
y

fo
r

w
a
s
te

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

T
h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

e
x
p
e
c
ts

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
 t

o
m

a
x
im

is
e
 t

h
e

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

w
a
s
te

re
c
y
c
le

d
.

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

D
u
e
 t

o
d
e
la

y
s

in
re

c
e
ip

t
o
f

d
a
ta

a
n
d
 t

o
e
n
s
u
re

w
h
o
le

q
u
a
rt

e
r

fi
g
u
re

s
a
re

p
ro

v
id

e
d
,

s
o
m

e
d
a
ta

is
e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
b
y

a
p
ro

ra
ta

m
e
th

o
d
. 

T
h
e

o
n
ly

fu
ll
y

a
u
d
it
e
d

fi
g
u
re

is
a
v
a
il
a
b
le

a
t

y
e
a
r

e
n
d

p
ro

v
id

e
d

b
y

E
s
s
e
x

C
o
u
n
ty

C
o
u
n
c
il
. 

T
ra

ff
ic

li
g
h
t

to
b
e

re
p
o
rt

e
d

a
t

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
.

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

T
ra

ff
ic

L
i g

h
t

0
0

0

7024.35

1
0
0
0
0
.0

0

1
2
5
0
0
.0

0
1
3
0
0
0
.0

0

0
.0

0

2
0
0
0
.0

0

4
0
0
0
.0

0

6
0
0
0
.0

0

8
0
0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
0
0
.0

0

1
2
0
0
0
.0

0

1
4
0
0
0
.0

0

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
2
7
/0

1
/0

6

Page 26



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

H
E

A
L

T
H

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3

2
0
0
3
/0

4
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
4
/0

5
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
8
.8

4
%

1
0
.0

0
%

N
/A

N
/A

2
0
0
6
/0

7
1
1
.0

0
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
1
1
.0

0
%

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

w
a
s
te

s
e
n
t

b
y
 t

h
e

a
u
th

o
ri

ty
fo

r
c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

o
r

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t

b
y

a
n
a
e
ro

b
ic

d
ig

e
s
ti
o
n
.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
h
is

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
to

g
e
th

e
r

w
it
h

B
V

8
2
a

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
e
a
c
h

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
's

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t

a
g
a
in

s
t

it
s

s
ta

tu
to

ry
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
fo

r
re

c
y
c
li
n
g

a
n
d

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

w
a
s
te

. 
T

h
is

is
a

k
e
y

m
e
a
s
u
re

o
f

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
'

p
ro

g
re

s
s

in
m

o
v
in

g
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

w
a
s
te

u
p
 t

h
e

h
ie

ra
rc

h
y
,

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t'
s

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l
s
tr

a
te

g
y

fo
r

w
a
s
te

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

T
h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

e
x
p
e
c
ts

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
 t

o
m

a
x
im

is
e
 t

h
e

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

b
io

lo
g
ic

a
ll
y
 t

re
a
te

d
.

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

D
u
e
 t

o
d
e
la

y
s

in
re

c
e
ip

t
o
f

d
a
ta

a
n
d
 t

o
e
n
s
u
re

w
h
o
le

q
u
a
rt

e
r

fi
g
u
re

s
a
re

p
ro

v
id

e
d
,

s
o
m

e
d
a
ta

is
e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
b
y

p
ro

ra
ta

m
e
th

o
d
. 

T
h
e

o
n
ly

fu
ll
y

a
u
d
it
e
d

fi
g
u
re

is
a
v
a
il
a
b
le

a
t

y
e
a
r

e
n
d

p
ro

v
id

e
d

b
y

E
s
s
e
x

C
o
u
n
ty

C
o
u
n
c
il
. 

T
ra

ff
ic

li
g
h
t

to
b
e

re
p
o
rt

e
d

a
t

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

T
ra

ff
ic

L
i g

h
t

B
V

8
2
b

(i
)

H
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

W
a
s
te

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
(C

o
m

p
o

s
ti

n
g

)
(N

E
W

)

8.84%

1
0
.0

0
%

1
1
.0

0
%

1
1
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

2
.0

0
%

4
.0

0
%

6
.0

0
%

8
.0

0
%

1
0
.0

0
%

1
2
.0

0
%

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
2
7
/0

1
/0

6

Page 27



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

H
E

A
L

T
H

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3

2
0
0
3
/0

4
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
4
/0

5
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
3
5
6
6
.8

6
5
0
0
0
.0

0
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
6
/0

7
5
5
0
0
.0

0
R

e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
5
5
0
0
.0

0

T
ra

ff
ic

L
i g

h
t

0
0

0

B
V

8
2
b

(i
i)

H
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

W
a
s
te

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
(C

o
m

p
o

s
ti

n
g

)
(N

E
W

)

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

D
u
e
 t

o
d
e
la

y
s

in
re

c
e
ip

t
o
f

d
a
ta

a
n
d
 t

o
e
n
s
u
re

w
h
o
le

q
u
a
rt

e
r

fi
g
u
re

s
a
re

p
ro

v
id

e
d
,

s
o
m

e
d
a
ta

is
e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
b
y

p
ro

ra
ta

m
e
th

o
d
. 

T
h
e

o
n
ly

fu
ll
y

a
u
d
it
e
d

fi
g
u
re

is
a
v
a
il
a
b
le

a
t

y
e
a
r

e
n
d

p
ro

v
id

e
d

b
y

E
s
s
e
x

C
o
u
n
ty

C
o
u
n
c
il
. 

T
ra

ff
ic

li
g
h
t

to
b
e

re
p
o
rt

e
d

a
t

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
.

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e
 t

o
n
n
a
g
e

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

w
a
s
te

s
e
n
t

b
y
 t

h
e

a
u
th

o
ri

ty
fo

r
c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

o
r

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t

b
y

a
n
a
e
ro

b
ic

d
ig

e
s
ti
o
n
.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
h
is

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
to

g
e
th

e
r

w
it
h

B
V

8
2
a

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
e
a
c
h

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
's

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t

a
g
a
in

s
t

it
s

s
ta

tu
to

ry
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
fo

r
re

c
y
c
li
n
g

a
n
d

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

w
a
s
te

. 
T

h
is

is
a

k
e
y

m
e
a
s
u
re

o
f

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
'

p
ro

g
re

s
s

in
m

o
v
in

g
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

w
a
s
te

u
p
 t

h
e

h
ie

ra
rc

h
y
,

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t'
s

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l
s
tr

a
te

g
y

fo
r

w
a
s
te

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

T
h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

e
x
p
e
c
ts

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
 t

o
m

a
x
im

is
e
 t

h
e

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

b
io

lo
g
ic

a
ll
y
 t

re
a
te

d
.

3
5
6
6
.8

6

5
0
0
0
.0

0

5
5
0
0
.0

0
5
5
0
0
.0

0

0
.0

0

1
0
0
0
.0

0

2
0
0
0
.0

0

3
0
0
0
.0

0

4
0
0
0
.0

0

5
0
0
0
.0

0

6
0
0
0
.0

0

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
2
7
/0

1
/0

6

Page 28



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

H
E

A
L

T
H

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3

2
0
0
3
/0

4
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
4
/0

5
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
1
5
%

2
5
%

N
/A

N
/A

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
1
8
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

T
h
is

is
a

c
o
m

p
le

x
in

d
ic

a
to

r,
re

q
u
ir

in
g

s
o
m

e
9
0
0

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s

p
e
r

a
n
n
u
m

o
f

a

ra
n
g
e

o
f

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
e

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
a
re

c
a
lc

u
la

te
d

u
s
in

g
a

D
E

F
R

A
/E

N
C

A
M

S

s
p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
t

in
to

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

is
in

p
u
t.

 T
h
e

s
p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
t

c
a
lc

u
la

te
s
 t

h
e

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
o
u
tc

o
m

e
. 

T
h
e

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

g
ra

d
e
s

a
re

A
/B

+
/B

/B
C

/C
/C

-/
D

. 
T

ra
ff

ic
li
g
h
t

to
b
e

re
p
o
rt

e
d

a
t

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
.

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

0
0

0

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

o
f

re
le

v
a
n
t

la
n
d

a
n
d

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s

(e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d

a
s

a
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
)

th
a
t

is
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d

a
s

h
a
v
in

g
c
o
m

b
in

e
d

d
e
p
o
s
it
s

o
f

li
tt

e
r

a
n
d

d
e
tr

it
u
s
 t

h
a
t

fa
ll

b
e
lo

w
a
n

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
u
n
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

le
v
e
ls

o
f

li
tt

e
r

a
n
d

d
e
tr

it
u
s

fo
rm

s
a

k
e
y

p
a
rt

o
f

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t'
s

C
le

a
n
e
r

S
a
fe

r 
G

re
e
n
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
a
n
d
 t

h
is

in
d
ic

a
to

r
is

in
c
lu

d
e
d

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f 

O
D

P
M

's
P

S
A

8
o
n

L
iv

e
a
b
il
it
y
. 

T
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e

im
p
ro

v
e
d

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

d
e
li
v
e
re

d
 t

o
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

b
y
 t

h
e

in
d
ic

a
to

r,

th
e
y

s
h
o
u
ld

a
im

 t
o

re
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e

s
c
o
re

y
e
a
r

o
n

y
e
a
r.

B
V

1
9
9
a

L
o

c
a
l
S

tr
e
e
t

a
n

d
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l
C

le
a
n

li
n

e
s
s

-
L

it
te

r
a
n

d
D

e
tr

it
u

s
(N

E
W

)

1
5
%2

5
%

2
0
%

1
8
%

0
%

5
%

1
0
%

1
5
%

2
0
%

2
5
%

3
0
%

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
2
7
/0

1
/0

6

Page 29



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

H
E

A
L

T
H

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3

2
0
0
3
/0

4
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
4
/0

5
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
0
%

2
5
%

N
/A

N
/A

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
1
8
%

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

0
0

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

T
h
is

is
a

c
o
m

p
le

x
in

d
ic

a
to

r,
re

q
u
ir

in
g

s
o
m

e
9
0
0

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s

p
e
r

a
n
n
u
m

o
f

a

ra
n
g
e

o
f

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
e

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
a
re

c
a
lc

u
la

te
d

u
s
in

g
a

D
E

F
R

A
/E

N
C

A
M

S

s
p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
t

in
to

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

is
in

p
u
t.

 T
h
e

s
p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
t

c
a
lc

u
la

te
s
 t

h
e

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
o
u
tc

o
m

e
. 

T
h
e

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

g
ra

d
e
s

a
re

A
/B

+
/B

/B
C

/C
/C

-/
D

. 
T

ra
ff

ic
li
g
h
t

to
b
e

re
p
o
rt

e
d

a
t

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
.

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
u
n
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

le
v
e
ls

o
f

g
ra

ff
it
i
fo

rm
s

a
k
e
y

p
a
rt

o
f 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t'
s

C
le

a
n
e
r

S
a
fe

r 
G

re
e
n
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
a
n
d
 t

h
is

in
d
ic

a
to

r
is

in
c
lu

d
e
d

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f 

O
D

P
M

's
P

S
A

8
o
n

L
iv

e
a
b
il
it
y
. 

T
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e

im
p
ro

v
e
d

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

d
e
li
v
e
re

d
 t

o
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

b
y
 t

h
e

in
d
ic

a
to

r,
 t

h
e
y

s
h
o
u
ld

a
im

 t
o

re
d
u
c
e

th
e

s
c
o
re

y
e
a
r

o
n

y
e
a
r.

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

0

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

0

B
V

1
9
9
b

L
o

c
a
l
S

tr
e
e
t

a
n

d
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l
C

le
a
n

li
n

e
s
s

- 
G

ra
ff

it
i
(N

E
W

)

T
h
e

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

o
f

re
le

v
a
n
t

la
n
d

a
n
d

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s

(e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d

a
s

a
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
)

fr
o
m

w
h
ic

h
u
n
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

le
v
e
ls

o
f

g
ra

ff
it
i
a
re

v
is

ib
le

.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

0
%

2
5
%

2
0
%

1
8
%

0
%

5
%

1
0
%

1
5
%

2
0
%

2
5
%

3
0
%

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
2
7
/0

1
/0

6

Page 30



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

H
E

A
L

T
H

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3

2
0
0
3
/0

4
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
4
/0

5
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
0
%

2
5
%

N
/A

N
/A

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
1
8
%

0

T
ra

ff
ic

L
i g

h
t

0
0

0

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

o
f

re
le

v
a
n
t

la
n
d

a
n
d

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s

(e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d

a
s

a
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
)

fr
o
m

w
h
ic

h
u
n
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

le
v
e
ls

o
f

fl
y
-p

o
s
ti
n
g

a
re

v
is

ib
le

.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
u
n
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

le
v
e
ls

o
f

fl
y
-p

o
s
ti
n
g

fo
rm

s
a

k
e
y

p
a
rt

o
f 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t'
s

C
le

a
n
e
r

S
a
fe

r 
G

re
e
n
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
a
n
d
 t

h
is

in
d
ic

a
to

r
is

in
c
lu

d
e
d

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f 

O
D

P
M

's
P

S
A

8
o
n

L
iv

e
a
b
il
it
y
. 

T
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e

im
p
ro

v
e
d

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

d
e
li
v
e
re

d
 t

o
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

b
y
 t

h
e

in
d
ic

a
to

r,
 t

h
e
y

s
h
o
u
ld

a
im

 t
o

re
d
u
c
e

th
e

s
c
o
re

y
e
a
r

o
n

y
e
a
r.

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

B
V

1
9
9
c

L
o

c
a
l
S

tr
e
e
t

a
n

d
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l
C

le
a
n

li
n

e
s
s

-
F

ly
-p

o
s
ti

n
g

(N
E

W
)

O
U

T
T

U
R

N
 F

IG
U

R
E

R
E

P
O

R
T

E
D

A
N

N
U

A
L
L
Y

. 
T

h
is

is
a

c
o
m

p
le

x
in

d
ic

a
to

r,

re
q
u
ir

in
g

s
o
m

e
9
0
0

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s

p
e
r

a
n
n
u
m

o
f

a
ra

n
g
e

o
f

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
e

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
a
re

c
a
lc

u
la

te
d

u
s
in

g
a

D
E

F
R

A
/E

N
C

A
M

S
s
p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
t

in
to

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

is
in

p
u
t.

 T
h
e

s
p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
t

c
a
lc

u
la

te
s
 t

h
e

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
o
u
tc

o
m

e
. 

T
h
e

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

g
ra

d
e
s

a
re

A
/B

+
/B

/B
C

/C
/C

-/
D

. 
T

ra
ff

ic
li
g
h
t 

to
b
e

re
p
o
rt

e
d

a
t

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
.

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

0
%

2
5
%

2
0
%

1
8
%

0
%

5
%

1
0
%

1
5
%

2
0
%

2
5
%

3
0
%

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
2
7
/0

1
/0

6

Page 31



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

H
E

A
L

T
H

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3

2
0
0
3
/0

4
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
4
/0

5
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

1
2

2
.5

N
/A

N
/A

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
.5

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
1

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

0

O
U

T
T

U
R

N
 F

IG
U

R
E

R
E

P
O

R
T

E
D

A
N

N
U

A
L
L
Y

. 
T

h
is

is
a

c
o
m

p
le

x
in

d
ic

a
to

r,

re
q
u
ir

in
g

s
o
m

e
9
0
0

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s

p
e
r

a
n
n
u
m

o
f

a
ra

n
g
e

o
f

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
e

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
a
re

c
a
lc

u
la

te
d

u
s
in

g
a

D
E

F
R

A
/E

N
C

A
M

S
s
p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
t

in
to

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

is
in

p
u
t.

 T
h
e

s
p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
t

c
a
lc

u
la

te
s
 t

h
e

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
o
u
tc

o
m

e
. 

T
h
e

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

g
ra

d
e
s

a
re

A
/B

+
/B

/B
C

/C
/C

-/
D

P
u

rp
o

s
e

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
u
n
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

le
v
e
ls

o
f

fl
y
-t

ip
p
in

g
fo

rm
s

a
k
e
y

p
a
rt

o
f 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t'
s

C
le

a
n
e
r

S
a
fe

r 
G

re
e
n
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
a
n
d
 t

h
is

in
d
ic

a
to

r
is

in
c
lu

d
e
d

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f 

O
D

P
M

's
P

S
A

8
o
n

L
iv

e
a
b
il
it
y
. 

T
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e

im
p
ro

v
e
d

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

d
e
li
v
e
re

d
 t

o
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

b
y
 t

h
e

in
d
ic

a
to

r,
 t

h
e
y

s
h
o
u
ld

a
im

 t
o

re
d
u
c
e

th
e

s
c
o
re

y
e
a
r

o
n

y
e
a
r.

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

0
0

0

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

B
V

1
9
9
d

L
o

c
a
l
S

tr
e
e
t

a
n

d
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l
C

le
a
n

li
n

e
s
s

-
F

ly
-t

ip
p

in
g

(N
E

W
)

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

y
e
a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a
r

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

in
 t

o
ta

l
n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

in
c
id

e
n
ts

a
n
d

in
c
re

a
s
e

in
 t

o
ta

l

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
d
e
a
l
w

it
h

‘f
ly

-t
ip

p
in

g
’.

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
1

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt
u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

2
.5

2
.5

1

2

0

0
.51

1
.52

2
.5

O
u
tt
u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
2
7
/0

1
/0

6

Page 32



K
E

Y
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

IN
D

IC
A

T
O

R
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
2

0
0

5
/0

6

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

B
V

8
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o

f 
In

v
o

ic
e
s

P
a
id

o
n

T
im

e

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
9
3
.2

9
%

9
4
%

2
0
0
3
/0

4
8
9
.4

2
%

1
0
0
%

9
6
.7

4
%

9
5
.9

0
%

2
0
0
4
/0

5
9
4
.4

7
%

1
0
0
%

9
6
.7

4
%

9
5
.9

0
%

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
9
3
.5

9
%

9
6
.7

4
%

9
6
.7

4
%

9
5
.9

0
%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
9
6
.7

4
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
9
6
.7

4
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

t
o

n
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

/t
a

rg
e

t
-

S
o

m
e

im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t
is

e
vi

d
e

n
t
s
in

c
e

q
u

a
rt

e
r

2
 t
h

a
n

k
s
 t
o

e
ff

o
rt

s
in

s
o

m
e

s
e

rv
ic

e
a

re
a

s
.

C
o

rr
e

c
ti

v
e

a
c

ti
o

n
p

ro
p

o
s

e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o

f
in

vo
ic

e
s

fo
r

c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l
g

o
o

d
s

a
n

d
s
e

rv
ic

e
s

p
a

id
b

y 
th

e
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

w
ith

in
3

0
d

a
ys

o
f

re
c
e

ip
t
o

r
w

ith
in

 t
h

e
a

g
re

e
d

p
a

ym
e

n
t 
te

rm
s
.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

p
ro

m
p

t
p

a
ym

e
n

t
o

f
in

vo
ic

e
s

re
c
e

iv
e

d

S
e

rv
ic

e
a

re
a

s
a

re
b

e
in

g
e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 t
o

p
a

s
s

in
vo

ic
e

s
q

u
ic

k
ly

a
n

d
m

o
re

im
p

o
rt

a
n

tl
y

in
vo

ic
e

s
in

d
is

p
u

te
m

u
s
t
b

e
n

o
tif

ie
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
in

vo
ic

e
s
e

c
tio

n
.

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

9
3
.5

9
%

93.29%

89.42%

94.47%

93.59%

9
4
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

9
6
.7

4
%

9
6
.7

4
%

9
6
.7

4
%

8
4

.0
0

%

8
6

.0
0

%

8
8

.0
0

%

9
0

.0
0

%

9
2

.0
0

%

9
4

.0
0

%

9
6

.0
0

%

9
8

.0
0

%

1
0

0
.0

0
%

1
0

2
.0

0
%

2
0

0
2

/0
3

2
0

0
3

/0
4

2
0

0
4

/0
5

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Q
3

2
0

0
6

/0
7

2
0

0
7

/0
8

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a

rt
ile

A
ll
 E

n
g

la
n

d
T

o
p

Q
u

a
rt

ile

F
IN

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

G
 S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

 P
A

N
E

L
2

7
/0

1
/0

6

Page 33



K
E

Y
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

IN
D

IC
A

T
O

R
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
2

0
0

5
/0

6

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

B
V

9
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o

f
C

o
u

n
c
il

T
a
x

C
o

ll
e
c
te

d

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
9
8
.0

0
%

9
8
.2

4
%

2
0
0
3
/0

4
9
7
.1

0
%

9
8
.1

0
%

9
8
.5

0
%

9
8
.2

9
%

2
0
0
4
/0

5
9
7
.6

0
%

9
8
.2

0
%

9
8
.5

0
%

9
8
.2

9
%

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
7
9
.8

0
%

9
8
.5

0
%

9
8
.5

0
%

9
8
.2

9
%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
9
8
.5

0
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
9
8
.5

0
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

t
o

n
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

/t
a

rg
e

t
-

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t

C
o

rr
e

c
ti

v
e

a
c

ti
o

n
p

ro
p

o
s

e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o

f
C

o
u

n
c
il

T
a

x
c
o

ll
e

c
te

d
b

y 
th

e
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

in
 t
h

e
ye

a
r

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

m
o

n
ito

r 
th

e
ra

te
o

f
c
o

ll
e

c
tio

n
o

f
C

o
u

n
c
il

T
a

x

0

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

7
9
.8

0
%

9
8
.2

4
%

9
8
.1

0
%

9
8
.2

0
%

9
8
.5

0
%

9
8
.5

0
%

9
8
.5

0
%

79.80%

97.60%

97.10%

98.00%

0
.0

0
%

2
0

.0
0

%

4
0

.0
0

%

6
0

.0
0

%

8
0

.0
0

%

1
0

0
.0

0
%

1
2

0
.0

0
%

2
0

0
2

/0
3

2
0

0
3

/0
4

2
0

0
4

/0
5

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Q
3

2
0

0
6

/0
7

2
0

0
7

/0
8

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a

rt
ile

A
ll
 E

n
g

la
n

d
T

o
p

Q
u

a
rt

ile

F
IN

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

G
 S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

 P
A

N
E

L
2

7
/0

1
/0

6

Page 34



K
E

Y
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

IN
D

IC
A

T
O

R
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
2

0
0

5
/0

6

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

B
V

1
0

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o

f
N

o
n

-D
o

m
e
s
ti

c
R

a
te

s
C

o
ll
e
c
te

d

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
9
8
.8

8
%

9
8
.3

0
%

2
0
0
3
/0

4
9
8
.1

0
%

9
8
.5

0
%

9
8
.1

2
%

2
0
0
4
/0

5
9
8
.7

0
%

9
8
.7

0
%

9
8
.1

2
%

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
8
4
.0

0
%

9
8
.1

2
%

9
8
.1

2
%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
9
8
.1

2
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
9
8
.1

2
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

t
o

n
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

/t
a

rg
e

t
-

O
n

 t
a

rg
e

t

C
o

rr
e

c
ti

v
e

a
c

ti
o

n
p

ro
p

o
s

e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o

f
N

o
n

-D
o

m
e

s
tic

R
a

te
s

C
o

ll
e

c
te

d

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

m
o

n
ito

r 
th

e
c
o

ll
e

c
tio

n
ra

te
o

f
n

a
tio

n
a

l
n

o
n

-d
o

m
e

s
tic

ra
te

s

0

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

8
4
.0

0
%

98.88%

98.10%

98.70%

84.00%

9
8
.3

0
%

9
8
.5

0
%

9
8
.7

0
%

9
8
.1

2
%

9
8
.1

2
%

9
8
.1

2
%

7
5

.0
0

%

8
0

.0
0

%

8
5

.0
0

%

9
0

.0
0

%

9
5

.0
0

%

1
0

0
.0

0
%

2
0

0
2

/0
3

2
0

0
3

/0
4

2
0

0
4

/0
5

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Q
3

2
0

0
6

/0
7

2
0

0
7

/0
8

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a

rt
ile

A
ll
 E

n
g

la
n

d
T

o
p

Q
u

a
rt

ile

F
IN

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

G
 S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

 P
A

N
E

L
2

7
/0

1
/0

6

Page 35



K
E

Y
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

IN
D

IC
A

T
O

R
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
2

0
0

5
/0

6

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

B
V

7
8
a

S
p

e
e
d

o
f

P
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
N

e
w

H
o

u
s
in

g
B

e
n

e
fi

t/
C

o
u

n
c
il

T
a
x

B
e
n

e
fi

t
C

la
im

s

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
4
0
.0

5
0
.0

2
0
0
3
/0

4
3
4
.0

3
2
.0

3
1
.0

3
2
.0

2
0
0
4
/0

5
4
4
.4

3
2
.0

3
1
.0

3
2
.0

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
2
9
.6

1
3
1
.0

3
1
.0

3
2
.0

2
0
0
6
/0

7
3
1
.0

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
3
1
.0

C
o

m
m

e
n

t
o

n
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

/t
a

rg
e

t
-

T
a

rg
e

t
s
h

o
u

ld
b

e
a

c
h

ie
ve

d
if

c
u

rr
e

n
t
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t
c
a

n
b

e
m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

.

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

in
Q

u
a

rt
e

r
3

w
a

s
2

4
d

a
ys

C
o

rr
e

c
ti

v
e

a
c

ti
o

n
p

ro
p

o
s

e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n

T
h

e
a

ve
ra

g
e

p
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
 t
im

e
 t
a

k
e

n
fo

r
a

ll
n

e
w

H
o

u
s
in

g
a

n
d

C
o

u
n

c
il

T
a

x 
B

e
n

e
fi
t
c
la

im
s

s
u

b
m

itt
e

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
lo

c
a

l
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

,
fo

r
w

h
ic

h
 t
h

e
d

a
te

o
f

d
e

c
is

io
n

is
w

ith
in

 t
h

e
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l

ye
a

r
b

e
in

g
re

p
o

rt
e

d
.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

m
o

n
ito

r 
th

e
a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

tio
n

o
f

H
o

u
s
in

g
a

n
d

C
o

u
n

c
il

T
a

x 
B

e
n

e
fi
t.

0

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

2
9
.6

1

5
0
.0

3
1
.0

3
1
.0

40.0

34.0

44.4

29.61

3
1
.0

3
2
.0

3
2
.0

0
.0

1
0

.0

2
0

.0

3
0

.0

4
0

.0

5
0

.0

6
0

.0

2
0

0
2

/0
3

2
0

0
3

/0
4

2
0

0
4

/0
5

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Q
3

2
0

0
6

/0
7

2
0

0
7

/0
8

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a

rt
ile

A
ll
 E

n
g

la
n

d
T

o
p

Q
u

a
rt

ile

F
IN

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

G
 S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

 P
A

N
E

L
2

7
/0

1
/0

6

Page 36



K
E

Y
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

IN
D

IC
A

T
O

R
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
2

0
0

5
/0

6

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

B
V

7
8
b

S
p

e
e
d

o
f

P
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
C

h
a
n

g
e
 i
n

C
ir

c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e
s

fo
r

H
o

u
s
in

g
B

e
n

e
fi

t/
C

o
u

n
c
il

T
a
x

B
e
n

e
fi

t
C

la
im

s

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
1
7
.0

0
1
0
.0

0

2
0
0
3
/0

4
1
1
.0

0
1
2
.0

0
7
.2

0
7
.7

0

2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
4
.7

0
1
0
.0

0
7
.2

0
7
.7

0

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
1
1
.9

1
7
.2

0
7
.2

0
7
.7

0

2
0
0
6
/0

7
7
.2

0
R

e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
7
.2

0

C
o

m
m

e
n

t
o

n
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

/t
a

rg
e

t
-

T
a

rg
e

t
is

n
o

t
lik

e
ly

 t
o

b
e

a
c
h

ie
ve

d
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

in
Q

u
a

rt
e

r
3

w
a

s
1

0
.7

d
a

ys

C
o

rr
e

c
ti

v
e

a
c

ti
o

n
p

ro
p

o
s

e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n

T
h

e
a

ve
ra

g
e

p
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
 t
im

e
 t
a

k
e

n
fo

r
a

ll
w

ri
tt
e

n
n

o
tif

ic
a

tio
n

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
lo

c
a

l
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

o
f

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

a
c
la

im
a

n
t's

c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

 t
h

a
t
re

q
u

ir
e

a
n

e
w

d
e

c
is

io
n

o
n

b
e

h
a

lf
o

f 
th

e

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

m
o

n
ito

r 
th

e
a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

tio
n

o
f

H
o

u
s
in

g
a

n
d

C
o

u
n

c
il

T
a

x 
B

e
n

e
fi
t

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

h
a

s
im

p
ro

ve
d

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y

b
u

t
d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
in

d
ic

a
to

r
b

e
in

g
c
a

lc
u

la
te

d
o

n

a
ve

ra
g

e
p

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
 t
im

e
s
, 
th

e
p

o
o

re
r

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

a
t 
th

e
b

e
g

in
n

in
g

o
f 

th
e

ye
a

r
c
a

n
n

o
t

b
e

c
h

a
n

g
e

d
.
It

s
h

o
u

ld
a

ls
o

b
e

n
o

te
d

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 t
a

rg
e

t
o

f
7

.2
w

a
s

c
a

lc
u

la
te

d
a

t
a

 t
im

e

w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
d

e
fi
n

iti
o

n
fo

r
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
in

c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
m

a
d

e
it

e
a

s
ie

r 
to

a
c
h

ie
ve

 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t

th
a

n
n

o
w

.

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

1
1
.9

1

17.00

11.00

11.91

1
0
.0

0

1
2
.0

0

1
0
.0

0

7
.2

0
7
.2

0
7
.2

0

24.70

0
.0

0

5
.0

0

1
0

.0
0

1
5

.0
0

2
0

.0
0

2
5

.0
0

3
0

.0
0

2
0

0
2

/0
3

2
0

0
3

/0
4

2
0

0
4

/0
5

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Q
3

2
0

0
6

/0
7

2
0

0
7

/0
8

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a

rt
ile

A
ll
 E

n
g

la
n

d
T

o
p

Q
u

a
rt

ile

F
IN

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

G
 S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

 P
A

N
E

L
2

7
/0

1
/0

6

Page 37



K
E

Y
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

IN
D

IC
A

T
O

R
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
2

0
0

5
/0

6

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

B
V

7
9
a

A
c
c
u

ra
c
y

o
f

P
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
H

o
u

s
in

g
B

e
n

e
fi

t/
C

o
u

n
c
il

T
a
x

B
e
n

e
fi

t
C

la
im

s

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
9
9
.0

%
9
5
.0

%

2
0
0
3
/0

4
9
9
.2

%
9
8
.0

%
9
9
.0

%
9
8
.8

%

2
0
0
4
/0

5
9
9
.6

%
9
9
.6

%
9
9
.0

%
9
8
.8

%

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
9
9
.7

%
9
9
.0

%
9
9
.0

%
9
8
.8

%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
9
9
.0

%
R

e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
9
9
.0

%

C
o

m
m

e
n

t
o

n
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

/t
a

rg
e

t
-

T
a

rg
e

t
s
h

o
u

ld
b

e
a

c
h

ie
ve

d
if

c
u

rr
e

n
t
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

is
m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

.

C
o

rr
e

c
ti

v
e

a
c

ti
o

n
p

ro
p

o
s

e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n

T
h

e
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o

f
c
a

s
e

s
w

ith
in

a
ra

n
d

o
m

s
a

m
p

le
fo

r
w

h
ic

h
 t
h

e
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

's
c
a

lc
u

la
tio

n

o
f

H
o

u
s
in

g
a

n
d

C
o

u
n

c
il

T
a

x 
B

e
n

e
fi
t
is

fo
u

n
d

 t
o

b
e

c
o

rr
e

c
t

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

m
o

n
ito

r 
th

e
a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

tio
n

o
f

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t
a

n
d

C
o

u
n

c
il

T
a

x 
B

e
n

e
fi
t,

T
h

e
h

ig
h

e
r

th
e

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

c
a

lc
u

la
tio

n
s

c
o

rr
e

c
t 
th

e
b

e
tt
e

r.

0

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

9
9
.7

3
%

9
9
.6

%

9
9
.0

%
9
9
.0

%

99.7%

99.6%

99.2%

99.0%

9
9
.0

%

9
8
.0

%

9
5
.0

%

9
2

.0
%

9
3

.0
%

9
4

.0
%

9
5

.0
%

9
6

.0
%

9
7

.0
%

9
8

.0
%

9
9

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%

1
0

1
.0

%

2
0

0
2

/0
3

2
0

0
3

/0
4

2
0

0
4

/0
5

2
0

0
5

/0
6

Q
3

2
0

0
6

/0
7

2
0

0
7

/0
8

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a

rt
ile

A
ll
 E

n
g

la
n

d
T

o
p

Q
u

a
rt

ile

F
IN

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

G
 S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

 P
A

N
E

L
2

7
/0

1
/0

6

Page 38



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

H
O

U
S

IN
G

B
V

6
3

E
n

e
rg

y
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y

o
f

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

to
c
k S

e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
5
7
.0

0
5
3
.0

0

2
0
0
3
/0

4
5
8
.9

1
6
0
.0

0
6
5
.0

0
6
5
.0

0

2
0
0
4
/0

5
6
5
.0

0
6
2
.0

0
6
5
.0

0
6
5
.0

0

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
6
5
.0

0
6
5
.0

0
6
5
.0

0
6
5
.0

0

2
0
0
6
/0

7
6
5
.0

0
R

e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
6
5
.0

0

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-
0

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

a
v
e
ra

g
e

S
A

P
ra

ti
n
g

o
f

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
-o

w
n
e
d

d
w

e
ll
in

g
s

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

o
n
 t

h
e

S
A

P
ra

ti
n
g

o
f

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
o
w

n
e
d

d
w

e
ll
in

g
s
. 

T
h
e

h
ig

h
e
r 

th
e

S
A

P
ra

ti
n
g
 t

h
e

b
e
tt

e
r.

0

T
ra

ff
ic

L
i g

h
t

6
5
.0

0

57.00

58.91

65.00

65.00

53.00

65.00

62.00

60.00

65.00

65.00

0
.0

0

1
0
.0

0

2
0
.0

0

3
0
.0

0

4
0
.0

0

5
0
.0

0

6
0
.0

0

7
0
.0

0

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

D
C

 T
o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n
g
la

n
d
 T

o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
2
7
/0

1
/0

6

Page 39



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

H
O

U
S

IN
G

B
V

6
4

V
a
c
a
n

t
D

w
e
ll
in

g
s

R
e
tu

rn
e
d

to
 O

c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

o
r

D
e
m

o
li
s
h

e
d

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
0
.0

0
N

/S

2
0
0
3
/0

4
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
4
/0

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
2
0
.0

0
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
5
.0

0
R

e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
3
0
.0

0

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
re

p
o
rt

o
n

c
u
rr

e
n
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

N
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

n
o
n
-l

o
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
-o

w
n
e
d

v
a
c
a
n
t

d
w

e
ll
in

g
s

re
tu

rn
e
d
 t

o

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n

o
r

d
e
m

o
li
s
h
e
d

d
u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
y
e
a
r

a
s

a
d
ir

e
c
t

re
s
u
lt

o
f

a
c
ti
o
n

b
y
 t

h
e

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 t

h
e

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n

o
r

d
e
m

o
li
ti
o
n

o
f

e
m

p
ty

h
o
m

e
s
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
re

p
o
rt

.

T
ra

ff
ic

L
i g

h
t

2
0
.0

0

2
5
.0

0

3
0
.0

0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

5
.0

0

1
0
.0

0

1
5
.0

0

2
0
.0

0

2
5
.0

0

3
0
.0

0

3
5
.0

0

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
2
7
/0

1
/0

6

Page 40



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

H
O

U
S

IN
G

B
V

6
6
a

R
e
n

t
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

a
n

d
A

rr
e
a
rs

R
e
c
o

v
e
ry

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
9
8
.1

3
%

9
9
.5

0
%

2
0
0
3
/0

4
9
7
.0

3
%

9
8
.2

5
%

9
8
.6

0
%

9
8
.1

9
%

2
0
0
4
/0

5
9
7
.8

0
%

9
7
.5

0
%

9
8
.6

0
%

9
8
.1

9
%

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
9
7
.4

7
%

9
8
.6

0
%

9
8
.6

0
%

9
8
.1

9
%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
9
8
.6

0
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
9
8
.6

0
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

A
c
c
u
ra

te
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

o
f

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

c
a
n

o
n
ly

b
e

m
a
d
e

a
t 

th
e

e
n
d

o
f 

th
e

y
e
a
r.

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

R
e
n
t

c
o
ll
e
c
te

d
b
y
 t

h
e

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
a
s

a
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

o
f

re
n
ts

o
w

e
d

o
n

H
o
u
s
in

g
R

e
v
e
n
u
e

A
c
c
o
u
n
t

d
w

e
ll
in

g
s

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
h
is

in
d
ic

a
to

r,
a
lo

n
g

w
it
h

B
V

6
6
b
,c

,d
is

a
k
e
y

m
e
a
s
u
re

o
f 

th
e

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s

a
n
d

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y

o
f

a
lo

c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
's

re
n
t

c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n

a
n
d

a
rr

e
a
rs

re
c
o
v
e
ry

s
e
rv

ic
e
. 

T
h
e
s
e

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
a
re

fo
u
r

d
e
s
c
ri

b
e

p
a
rt

s
b
u
t

s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

lo
o
k
e
d

a
t

h
o
li
s
ti
c
a
ll
y
.

A
n

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t

re
n
t

c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n

s
e
rv

ic
e

is
im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

to
e
n
s
u
ri

n
g
 t

h
a
t

a
s

m
u
c
h

o
f 

th
e

re
n
t

d
u
e
,

a
n
d
 t

h
u
s

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l
in

c
o
m

e
is

c
o
ll
e
c
te

d
a
n
d

re
c
e
iv

e
d
.

0

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

9
7
.4

7
%

98.13%

97.03%

97.80%

97.47%

9
9
.5

0
%

9
8
.6

0
%

9
8
.6

0
%

9
8
.6

0
%

9
8
.2

5
%

9
7
.5

0
%

9
5
.5

0
%

9
6
.0

0
%

9
6
.5

0
%

9
7
.0

0
%

9
7
.5

0
%

9
8
.0

0
%

9
8
.5

0
%

9
9
.0

0
%

9
9
.5

0
%

1
0
0
.0

0
%

20
02

/0
3

20
03

/0
4

20
04

/0
5

20
05

/0
6

Q
3

20
06

/0
7

20
07

/0
8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

D
C

 T
o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n
g
la

n
d
 T

o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
2
7
/0

1
/0

6

Page 41



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

H
O

U
S

IN
G

B
V

1
6
4

E
q

u
a
l
A

c
c
e
s
s

to
S

o
c
ia

l
H

o
u

s
in

g

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

2
0
0
3
/0

4
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

N
/A

3
9
.0

0
%

2
0
0
4
/0

5
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

2
0
0
6
/0

7
Y

e
s

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
Y

e
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

0

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

D
o
e
s
 t

h
e

a
u
th

o
ri

ty
fo

ll
o
w

 t
h
e

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
fo

r
R

a
c
ia

l
E

q
u
a
li
ty

's
c
o
d
e

o
f

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

in
R

e
n
te

d
H

o
u
s
in

g
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 G

o
o
d

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
fo

r
S

o
c
ia

l

L
a
n
d
lo

rd
s

o
n
 T

a
c
k
li
n
g

H
a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t

in
c
lu

d
e
d

in
'T

a
c
k
li
n
g

R
a
c
ia

l

H
a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t:

C
o
d
e

o
f

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

fo
r

S
o
c
ia

l
L
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
'?

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

m
o
n
it
o
r

fa
ir

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
s
o
c
ia

l
h
o
u
s
in

g
.

0

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

3
2
%

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

F
in

a
l
F

ig
u
re

2
0
0
3
/0

4

F
in

a
l
F

ig
u
re

2
0
0
4
/0

5

Q
tr

1
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
tr

2
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
tr

3
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
tr

4
2
0
0
5
/0

6

T
a
rg

e
t
2
0
0
5
/0

6

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
D

is
tr

ic
ts

2
0
0
3
/0

4

T
a
rg

e
t
2
0
0
6
/0

7

T
a
rg

e
t
2
0
0
7
/0

8

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
2
7
/0

1
/0

6

Page 42



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

H
O

U
S

IN
G

B
V

1
8
3
a

L
e
n

g
th

o
f

S
ta

y
 i
n

T
e
m

p
o

ra
ry

A
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

(B
e
d

&
B

re
a
k
fa

s
t)

 i
n

 w
e
e
k
s

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
8
.3

3
N

/S

2
0
0
3
/0

4
6
.5

0
4
.0

0
1
.1

8
1
.2

1

2
0
0
4
/0

5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
.1

8
1
.2

1

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
0
.0

0
1
.1

8
1
.1

8
1
.2

1

2
0
0
6
/0

7
1
.1

8
R

e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
1
.1

8

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

0

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

a
v
e
ra

g
e

le
n
g
th

o
f

s
ta

y
in

b
e
d

a
n
d

b
re

a
k
fa

s
t

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 t

h
a
t

a
re

u
n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
ll
y

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

a
n
d

in
p
ri

o
ri

ty
n
e
e
d
.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

m
e
a
s
u
re

a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
'
s
u
c
c
e
s
s

in
re

d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e

in
a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

u
s
e

o
f

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
.

0

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

0
.0

0

8.33

6.50

0.00

0.00

0
.0

0

4
.0

0

1
.1

8
1
.1

8
1
.1

8
1
.2

1

0
0

0
.0

0

1
.0

0

2
.0

0

3
.0

0

4
.0

0

5
.0

0

6
.0

0

7
.0

0

8
.0

0

9
.0

0

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

D
C

 T
o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n
g
la

n
d
 T

o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
2
7
/0

1
/0

6

Page 43



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

H
O

U
S

IN
G

B
V

1
8
4
a

N
o

n
-D

e
c
e
n

t
L

o
c
a
l
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
D

w
e
ll
in

g
s

(p
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
)

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
3
.0

0
%

N
/S

2
0
0
3
/0

4
1
4
.0

4
%

1
5
.0

0
%

1
5
.0

0
%

2
1
.0

0
%

2
0
0
4
/0

5
7
.3

0
%

8
.6

0
%

1
5
.0

0
%

2
1
.0

0
%

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
7
.3

0
%

1
5
.0

0
%

1
5
.0

0
%

2
1
.0

0
%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
1
5
.0

0
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
1
5
.0

0
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

0

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

o
f

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
d
w

e
ll
in

g
s

w
h
ic

h
w

e
re

n
o
n
-d

e
c
e
n
t

a
t 

th
e

s
ta

rt
o
f 

th
e

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
y
e
a
r.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
h
is

B
V

P
I

m
o
n
it
o
rs

y
e
a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a
r

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

in
 t

h
e

q
u
a
li
ty

o
f

lo
c
a
l

a
u
th

o
ri

ty
h
o
u
s
in

g
s
to

c
k
. 

T
h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

b
e
li
e
v
e
s
 t

h
a
t

e
v
e
ry

o
n
e

s
h
o
u
ld

h
a
v
e
 t

h
e

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
h
a
v
e

a
d
e
c
e
n
t

h
o
m

e
. 

It
 i
s

a
im

in
g
 t

o
m

a
k
e

a
ll

c
o
u
n
c
il

a
n
d

h
o
u
s
in

g
a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

h
o
u
s
in

g
d
e
c
e
n
t

b
y

2
0
1
0
.,

0

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

23.00%

14.04%

7.30%

7.30%

1
5
.0

0
%

8
.6

0
%

1
5
.0

0
%

1
5
.0

0
%

1
5
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

5
.0

0
%

1
0
.0

0
%

1
5
.0

0
%

2
0
.0

0
%

2
5
.0

0
%

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

D
C

 T
o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n
g
la

n
d
 T

o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
2
7
/0

1
/0

6

Page 44



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

H
O

U
S

IN
G

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

1
2
2

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

1
5
0

7
4

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
5
0

7
4

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

4
7
4

2
0
0
6
/0

7
3
3

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
5
9

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
m

e
s

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

a
n
d

re
a
d
y

fo
r

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n

d
u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e

y
e
a
r.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

m
e
a
s
u
re

 t
h
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
m

e
s

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

a
n
d

re
a
d
y

fo
r

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n

d
u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e

y
e
a
r

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

N
e
w

 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r
- 

T
a
rg

e
t

fo
r

2
0
0
5
/6

is
b
a
s
e
d

o
n

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

o
n

s
it
e

a
n
d

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
c
o
m

p
le

te
b
y

A
p
ri

l
2
0
0
6
. 

In
d
ic

a
to

r
is

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

o
n

ta
rg

e
t.

 T
a
rg

e
ts

fo
r

2
0
0
6
/7

&
2
0
0
7
/8

w
il
l
b
e

b
a
s
e
d

o
n

b
o
th

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

o
n

s
it
e

&
 t

h
o
s
e

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
.

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

0

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

5
0
.0

0

H
1
5
a

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
H

o
m

e
s

2
2

5
0

5
0

7
4

7
4

7
4

3
3

5
9

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
1

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
1

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
4

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
2
7
/0

1
/0

6

Page 45



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

H
O

U
S

IN
G

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

1
2
8
.0

0
%

3
0
.0

0
%

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

2
2
8
.0

0
%

3
0
.0

0
%

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
2
8
.0

0
%

3
0
.0

0
%

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

4
3
0
.0

0
%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
3
3
.0

0
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
4
0
.0

0
%

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

a
m

o
u
n
t

o
f

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in

g
re

q
u
ir

e
d

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

a
ll

S
e
c
ti
o
n

1
0
6

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

s
ig

n
e
d

d
u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e

y
e
a
r,

fo
r

a
ll

la
rg

e
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

s
it
e
s

(i
n

e
x
c
e
s
s

o
f

2
5

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

o
r

1
h
e
c
ta

re
e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d

a
s

a

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f 

th
e
 t

o
ta

l
n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

h
o
m

e
s
 t

o
b
e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

o
n

la
rg

e
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

s
it
e
s
).

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in

g
in

 t
h
e

d
is

tr
ic

t

H
1
5
b

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
H

o
u

s
in

g

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

2
8
.0

0
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

N
e
w

in
d
ic

a
to

r
- 

ta
rg

e
t

is
b
a
s
e
d

o
n
 t

h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
's

c
u
rr

e
n
t

S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry

P
la

n
n
in

g
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
. 

T
a
rg

e
ts

fo
r

2
0
0
6
/7

&
2
0
0
7
/8

a
s
s
u
m

e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in

g
s
o
u
g
h
t

w
il
l
b
e

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

p
a
rt

w
a
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

2
0
0
6
/7

(J
u
n
e
/J

u
ly

2
0
0
6
) 

to
4
0
%

, 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t

h
e

A
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

L
o
c
a
l
P

la
n
.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

is
s
li
g
h
tl
y

b
e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t,

d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e

ro
u
n
d
in

g
d
o
w

n
e
ff

e
c
t

o
f 

th
e

o
n
e

S
1
0
6

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
d
a
te

(B
u
s
k
h
u
rs

t
H

il
l
R

e
s
e
rv

o
ir

-
1
9

o
u
t

o
f

6
7

a
re

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

).
 T

h
is

s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

c
o
rr

e
c
te

d
if

S
1
0
6

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

a
re

s
ig

n
e
d

fo
r

M
e
rl

in
W

a
y
,

N
o
rt

h
W

e
a
ld

a
n
d

S
t

M
a
rg

a
re

t'
s

H
o
s
p
it
a
l,

E
p
p
in

g
b
y

A
p
ri

l

2
0
0
6
.

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t

fo
r

2
0
0
5
/6

w
il
l
n
o
t

b
e

m
e
t

if
 t

h
e

S
1
0
6

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t

fo
r 

th
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
t

S
t

J
o
h
n
s

S
c
h
o
o
l,

E
p
p
in

g
is

s
ig

n
e
d
 t

h
is

y
e
a
r,

s
in

c
e

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
a
v
e

a
g
re

e
d
 t

o
o
n
ly

1
0
%

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in

g
b
e
in

g
p
ro

v
id

e
d
.

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

2
8
.0

0
%

2
8
.0

0
%

2
8
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

5
.0

0
%

1
0
.0

0
%

1
5
.0

0
%

2
0
.0

0
%

2
5
.0

0
%

3
0
.0

0
%

3
5
.0

0
%

4
0
.0

0
%

4
5
.0

0
%

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
1

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
2

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
4

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
2
7
/0

1
/0

6

Page 46



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

IC
T

A
N

D
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

B
V

1
1
a

T
o

p
5
%

o
f

E
a
rn

e
rs

:
W

o
m

e
n

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
2
.0

0
%

N
/S

2
0
0
3
/0

4
1
8
.7

5
%

2
2
.0

0
%

2
6
.6

9
%

3
9
.0

5
%

2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
3
.2

1
%

2
2
.0

0
%

2
6
.6

9
%

3
9
.0

5
%

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
2
7
.0

0
%

2
6
.6

9
%

2
6
.6

9
%

3
9
.0

5
%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
6
.6

9
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
6
.6

9
%

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f 

to
p
-p

a
id

5
%

o
f

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
s
ta

ff
w

h
o

a
re

w
o
m

e
n

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

m
o
n
it
o
r

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
e
q
u
a
l
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

O
U

T
T

U
R

N
F

IG
U

R
E

R
E

P
O

R
T

E
D

 A
N

N
U

A
L
L
Y

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

N
o
n
e

re
q
u
ir

e
d

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

2
7
.0

0
%

2
2
.0

0
%

2
6
.6

9
%

2
6
.6

9
%

22.00%

18.75%

23.21%

27.00%

2
2
.0

0
%

2
6
.6

9
%

0
.0

0
%

5
.0

0
%

1
0
.0

0
%

1
5
.0

0
%

2
0
.0

0
%

2
5
.0

0
%

3
0
.0

0
%

3
5
.0

0
%

4
0
.0

0
%

4
5
.0

0
%

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

D
C

 T
o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n
g
la

n
d
 T

o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
3
0
/0

1
/0

6

Page 47



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

IC
T

A
N

D
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

B
V

1
1
b

T
o

p
5
%

E
a
rn

e
rs

:
E

th
n

ic
M

in
o

ri
ti

e
s

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
.0

0
%

N
/S

2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
.0

8
%

2
.2

5
%

2
.2

0
%

3
.7

0
%

2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
.1

9
%

2
.2

5
%

2
.2

0
%

3
.7

0
%

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
2
.1

5
%

2
.2

0
%

2
.2

0
%

3
.7

0
%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
.2

0
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
.2

0
%

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f 

th
e
 t

o
p

5
%

o
f

L
o
c
a
l
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
s
ta

ff
w

h
o

a
re

fr
o
m

a
n

e
th

n
ic

m
in

o
ri

ty

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e

o
u
tc

o
m

e
o
f

e
q
u
a
l
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
p
o
li
c
ie

s
.

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

O
U

T
T

U
R

N
F

IG
U

R
E

R
E

P
O

R
T

E
D

 A
N

N
U

A
L
L
Y

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

N
o
n
e

re
q
u
ir

e
d

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

2
.1

5
%

2.00%

2.08%

2.19%

2.15%

2
.2

5
%

2
.2

5
%

2
.2

0
%

2
.2

0
%

2
.2

0
%

0
.0

0
%

0
.5

0
%

1
.0

0
%

1
.5

0
%

2
.0

0
%

2
.5

0
%

3
.0

0
%

3
.5

0
%

4
.0

0
%

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

D
C

 T
o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n
g
la

n
d
 T

o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
3
0
/0

1
/0

6

Page 48



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

IC
T

A
N

D
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

B
V

1
1
c

T
o

p
5
%

E
a
rn

e
rs

: 
w

it
h

a
d

is
a
b

il
it

y

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3

2
0
0
3
/0

4
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
4
/0

5
N

e
w

N
/A

N
/A

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
8
.5

9
%

6
.0

0
%

N
/A

N
/A

2
0
0
6
/0

7
6
.0

0
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
6
.0

0
%

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f 

th
e
 t

o
p

p
a
id

5
%

o
f

s
ta

ff
w

h
o

h
a
v
e

a
d
is

a
b
il
it
y
,

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e

in
m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

s
c
h
o
o
ls

).

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

m
e
a
s
u
re

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
e
q
u
a
l
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
in

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

O
U

T
T

U
R

N
F

IG
U

R
E

R
E

P
O

R
T

E
D

 A
N

N
U

A
L
L
Y

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

N
o
n
e

re
q
u
ir

e
d

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

8
.5

9
%

6
.0

0
%

6
.0

0
%

8.59%

New
6
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

1
.0

0
%

2
.0

0
%

3
.0

0
%

4
.0

0
%

5
.0

0
%

6
.0

0
%

7
.0

0
%

8
.0

0
%

9
.0

0
%

1
0
.0

0
%

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
3
0
/0

1
/0

6

Page 49



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

IC
T

A
N

D
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

B
V

1
2

W
o

rk
in

g
D

a
y
s

L
o

s
t

D
u

e
to

S
ic

k
n

e
s
s

A
b

s
e
n

c
e

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
8
.0

7
N

/S

2
0
0
3
/0

4
1
1
.0

3
1
0
.0

0
8
.9

3
8
.9

0

2
0
0
4
/0

5
1
0
.6

8
1
0
.0

0
8
.9

3
8
.9

0

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
7
.3

5
8
.9

3
8
.9

3
8
.9

0

2
0
0
6
/0

7
8
.9

3
R

e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
8
.9

3

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

w
o
rk

in
g

d
a
y
s
/s

h
if
ts

lo
s
t 

to
 t

h
e

L
o
c
a
l
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
d
u
e
 t

o
s
ic

k
n
e
s
s

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e

le
v
e
l
o
f

s
ic

k
n
e
s
s

a
b
s
e
n
c
e

in
lo

c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
.

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

T
h
e

fi
g
u
re

s
ti
ll

s
h
o
w

s
a
n

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

o
n
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r

3
.

B
a
s
e
d

o
n

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

tr
e
n
d

o
u
tt

u
rn

fi
g
u
re

fo
r 

th
e

y
e
a
r

s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

a
n

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

o
n

2
0
0
4
/0

5
.

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

0

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

7
.3

5

7.358
.9

3
8
.9

3
8
.9

3

8.07

11.03

10.68

1
0
.0

0
1
0
.0

0

0
.0

0

2
.0

0

4
.0

0

6
.0

0

8
.0

0

1
0
.0

0

1
2
.0

0

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

D
C

 T
o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n
g
la

n
d
 T

o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
3
0
/0

1
/0

6

Page 50



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

IC
T

A
N

D
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

B
V

1
4

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o

f
E

a
rl

y
R

e
ti

re
m

e
n

ts

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
0
.0

0
%

0
.4

5
%

2
0
0
3
/0

4
0
.1

7
%

0
.1

0
%

0
.1

4
%

0
.1

7
%

2
0
0
4
/0

5
0
.1

8
%

0
.1

0
%

0
.1

4
%

0
.1

7
%

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
0
.1

7
%

0
.1

4
%

0
.1

4
%

0
.1

7
%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
0
.1

4
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s

re
ti
ri

n
g

e
a
rl

y
(e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
il
l-

h
e
a
lt
h

re
ti
re

m
e
n
ts

)

a
s

a
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f 

th
e
 t

o
ta

l
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

m
o
n
it
o
r

e
a
rl

y
re

ti
re

m
e
n
t.

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

O
U

T
T

U
R

N
F

IG
U

R
E

R
E

P
O

R
T

E
D

 A
N

N
U

A
L
L
Y

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

N
o
n
e

re
q
u
ir

e
d

T
ra

ff
ic

0
1
7
%

0.00%0
.4

5
%

0
.1

4
%

0
.1

4
%

0.17%

0.18%

0.17%

0
.1

0
%

0
.1

4
%

0
.1

0
%

0
.0

0
%

0
.0

5
%

0
.1

0
%

0
.1

5
%

0
.2

0
%

0
.2

5
%

0
.3

0
%

0
.3

5
%

0
.4

0
%

0
.4

5
%

0
.5

0
%

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

D
C

 T
o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n
g
la

n
d
 T

o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
3
0
/0

1
/0

6

Page 51



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

IC
T

A
N

D
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

2
0
0
7
/0

8
0
.1

4
%

B
V

1
6
a

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
o

f
E

m
p

lo
y
e
e
s
 w

it
h

a
D

is
a
b

il
it

y

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
1
.1

8
%

N
/S

2
0
0
3
/0

4
1
.0

5
%

1
.4

5
%

4
.1

1
%

N
/A

2
0
0
4
/0

5
1
.6

2
%

1
.4

5
%

4
.1

1
%

N
/A

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
1
.6

7
%

4
.1

1
%

4
.1

1
%

N
/A

L
ig

h
t

0
.1

7
%

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s

w
it
h

a
d
is

a
b
il
it
y
.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

m
e
a
s
u
re

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
e
q
u
a
l
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
in

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

O
U

T
T

U
R

N
F

IG
U

R
E

R
E

P
O

R
T

E
D

 A
N

N
U

A
L
L
Y

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

J
o
in

t
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t

a
c
ti
v
it
y

p
la

n
n
e
d

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

C
o
u
n
ty

C
o
u
n
c
il

fo
r

e
a
rl

y
in

 t
h
e

n
e
w

y
e
a
r.

1.18%

1.05%

1.62%

1.67%

1
.4

5
%

4
.1

1
%

4
.1

1
%

4
.1

1
%

1
.4

5
%

0
.0

0
%

0
.5

0
%

1
.0

0
%

1
.5

0
%

2
.0

0
%

2
.5

0
%

3
.0

0
%

3
.5

0
%

4
.0

0
%

4
.5

0
%

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

D
C

 T
o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
3
0
/0

1
/0

6

Page 52



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

IC
T

A
N

D
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

2
0
0
6
/0

7
4
.1

1
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
4
.1

1
%

B
V

1
7
a

E
th

n
ic

m
in

o
ri

ty
re

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 i
n

th
e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
-

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
.6

0
%

3
.3

0
%

2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
.4

6
%

2
.7

5
%

2
.4

0
%

N
/A

2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
.3

6
%

2
.7

5
%

2
.4

0
%

N
/A

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

1
.6

7
%

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s

fr
o
m

e
th

n
ic

m
in

o
ri

ty

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

m
o
n
it
o
r

e
q
u
a
l
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

O
U

T
T

U
R

N
F

IG
U

R
E

R
E

P
O

R
T

E
D

 A
N

N
U

A
L
L
Y

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

N
o
n
e

re
q
u
ir

e
d

3
.3

0
%

2
.7

5
%

2
.7

5
%

2
.4

0
%

2
.4

0
%

2
.4

0
%

2.60%

2.46%

2.98%

2.36%

0
.0

0
%

0
.5

0
%

1
.0

0
%

1
.5

0
%

2
.0

0
%

2
.5

0
%

3
.0

0
%

3
.5

0
%

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

D
C

 T
o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
3
0
/0

1
/0

6

Page 53



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

IC
T

A
N

D
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
2
.9

8
%

2
.4

0
%

2
.4

0
%

N
/A

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
.4

0
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
.4

0
%

B
V

1
5
7

E
-g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t:
E

-e
n

a
b

le
d

 i
n

te
ra

c
ti

o
n

s

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
4
6
%

5
1
%

2
0
0
3
/0

4
5
4
%

7
8
%

7
2
%

7
4
%

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

2
.9

8
%

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f 

ty
p
e
s

o
f

in
te

ra
c
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t

a
re

e
n
a
b
le

d
fo

r
e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

d
e
li
v
e
ry

a
s

a
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f 

th
e
 t

y
p
e
s

o
f

in
te

ra
c
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t

a
re

le
g
a
ll
y

p
e
rm

is
s
ib

le
fo

r

e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

d
e
li
v
e
ry

.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

m
a
k
e

a
ll

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
in

te
ra

c
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t

a
re

e
n
a
b
le

d
, 

to
b
e
c
o
m

e

e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

a
ll
y

d
e
li
v
e
ra

b
le

.

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

0

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

0

5
1
%

7
8
%

7
8
%

7
2
%

7
2
%

7
2
%

86%

70%

46%

54%

0
%

1
0
%

2
0
%

3
0
%

4
0
%

5
0
%

6
0
%

7
0
%

8
0
%

9
0
%

1
0
0
%

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

D
C

 T
o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n
g
la

n
d
 T

o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
3
0
/0

1
/0

6

Page 54



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

IC
T

A
N

D
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

2
0
0
4
/0

5
7
0
%

7
8
%

7
2
%

7
4
%

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
8
6
%

7
2
%

7
2
%

7
4
%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
7
2
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
7
2
%

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

8
6
%

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
3
0
/0

1
/0

6

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

L
E

IS
U

R
E

B
V

1
7
0
a

V
is

it
s

T
o

a
n

d
U

s
e
 O

f
M

u
s
e
u

m
s
:

a
ll

v
is

it
s

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3

2
0
0
3
/0

4
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
4
/0

5
A

m
e
n
d
e
d

N
/A

N
/A

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
3
8
8
.9

6
3
0
9
.0

0
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
6
/0

7
3
0
9
.0

0
R

e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
3
0
9
.0

0

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

0

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

v
is

it
s
 t

o
/u

s
a
g
e
s

o
f

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
fu

n
d
e
d

o
r

p
a
rt

-f
u
n
d
e
d

m
u
s
e
u
m

s
in

 t
h
e

p
e
r

1
,0

0
0

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
 t

o
m

a
k
e

m
u
s
e
u
m

s
m

o
re

a
tt

ra
c
ti
v
e
 t

o

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
a
n
d

m
a
x
im

is
e
 t

h
e
ir

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l
v
a
lu

e
.

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t

o

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t

o
f

C
u
lt
u
re

,
M

e
d
ia

a
n
d

S
p
o
rt

(D
C

M
S

)
P

S
A

 T
a
rg

e
t

2
, 

to
in

c
re

a
s
e

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 t

h
e
 t

a
k
e
-u

p
o
f

c
u
lt
u
ra

l
a
n
d

s
p
o
rt

in
g

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
b
y

n
e
w

u
s
e
rs

a
g
e
d

2
0

a
n
d

a
b
o
v
e

fr
o
m

p
ri

o
ri

ty
g
ro

u
p
s
.

D
C

M
S

is
k
e
e
n
 t

o
in

c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l
a
n
d

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

v
a
lu

e
o
f 

th
e

n
a
ti
o
n
's

c
u
lt
u
ra

l
a
n
d

s
p
o
rt

in
g

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
.

A
y
e
a
r

o
n

y
e
a
r

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

is
s
o
u
g
h
t.

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

3
8
8
.9

6

3
0
9
.0

0
3
0
9
.0

0
3
0
9
.0

0

In
d
ic

a
to

r

a
m

e
n
d
e
d

2
0
0
5
/0

6

388.96

0
.0

0

5
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0

1
5
0
.0

0

2
0
0
.0

0

2
5
0
.0

0

3
0
0
.0

0

3
5
0
.0

0

4
0
0
.0

0

4
5
0
.0

0

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
3
0
/0

1
/0

6

Page 57



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

L
E

IS
U

R
E

B
V

1
7
0
c

V
is

it
s

T
o

a
n

d
U

s
e
 O

f
M

u
s
e
u

m
s
:

s
c
h

o
o

l
g

ro
u

p
s

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3

2
0
0
3
/0

4
N

/A
N

/A

2
0
0
4
/0

5
A

m
e
n
d
e
d

N
/A

N
/A

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
2
7
2
9

3
6
0
0

N
/A

N
/A

2
0
0
6
/0

7
3
7
0
0

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
3
7
0
0

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-
0

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

p
u
p
il
s

v
is

it
in

g
m

u
s
e
u
m

s
a
n
d

g
a
ll
e
ri

e
s

in
o
rg

a
n
is

e
d

s
c
h
o
o
l

g
ro

u
p
s
.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
 t

o
m

a
k
e

m
u
s
e
u
m

s
m

o
re

a
tt

ra
c
ti
v
e
 t

o

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
a
n
d

m
a
x
im

is
e
 t

h
e
ir

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l
v
a
lu

e
.

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t

o

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t

o
f

C
u
lt
u
re

,
M

e
d
ia

a
n
d

S
p
o
rt

(D
C

M
S

)
P

S
A

 T
a
rg

e
t

2
, 

to
in

c
re

a
s
e

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 t

h
e
 t

a
k
e
-u

p
o
f

c
u
lt
u
ra

l
a
n
d

s
p
o
rt

in
g

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
b
y

n
e
w

u
s
e
rs

a
g
e
d

2
0

a
n
d

a
b
o
v
e

fr
o
m

p
ri

o
ri

ty
g
ro

u
p
s
.

D
C

M
S

w
a
n
ts

 t
o

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l
a
n
d

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

v
a
lu

e
o
f 

th
e

n
a
ti
o
n
's

c
u
lt
u
ra

l
a
n
d

s
p
o
rt

in
g

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
.

A
y
e
a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a
r

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

is
s
o
u
g
h
t.

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

2
7
2
9

3600

3700

3700

2
7
2
9

0

5
0
0

1
0
0
0

1
5
0
0

2
0
0
0

2
5
0
0

3
0
0
0

3
5
0
0

4
0
0
0

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
3
0
/0

1
/0

6

Page 58



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
A

N
D

E
C

O
N

O
M

IC
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

B
V

1
0
6

N
e
w

H
o

m
e
s

o
n

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

L
a
n

d

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
7
0
.0

0
%

7
0
.0

0
%

2
0
0
3
/0

4
8
9
.6

0
%

7
0
.0

0
%

8
6
.0

0
%

9
3
.0

0
%

2
0
0
4
/0

5
9
4
.0

0
%

7
0
.0

0
%

8
6
.0

0
%

9
3
.0

0
%

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
9
7
.0

9
%

8
6
.0

0
%

8
6
.0

0
%

9
3
.0

0
%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
8
6
.0

0
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
8
6
.0

0
%

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

n
e
w

h
o
m

e
s

b
u
il
t

o
n

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

la
n
d
.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 t

h
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
h
o
u
s
in

g
o
n

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

la
n
d

a
n
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
s

o
f

e
x
is

ti
n
g

b
u
il
d
in

g
s

in
o
rd

e
r 

to
m

in
im

is
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

o
n

g
re

e
n

fi
e
ld

s
.

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

0

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

9
7
.0

9
%

8
6
.0

0
%

70.00%

89.60%

94.00%

97.09%

7
0
.0

0
%

7
0
.0

0
%

7
0
.0

0
%

8
6
.0

0
%

8
6
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

2
0
.0

0
%

4
0
.0

0
%

6
0
.0

0
%

8
0
.0

0
%

1
0
0
.0

0
%

1
2
0
.0

0
%

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

D
C

 T
o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n
g
la

n
d
 T

o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

il
e

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
3
0
/0

1
/0

6

Page 59



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
A

N
D

E
C

O
N

O
M

IC
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

B
V

1
0
9
a

M
a
jo

r
P

la
n

n
in

g
A

p
p

li
c
a
ti

o
n

s

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
6
.0

0
%

6
0
.0

0
%

2
0
0
3
/0

4
4
8
.0

0
%

5
5
.0

0
%

6
3
.5

8
%

6
3
.6

4
%

2
0
0
4
/0

5
4
1
.0

0
%

5
7
.0

0
%

6
3
.5

8
%

6
3
.6

4
%

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
3
6
.0

0
%

6
3
.5

8
%

6
3
.5

8
%

6
3
.6

4
%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
6
3
.5

8
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
6
3
.5

8
%

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

m
a
jo

r
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

w
it
h
in

1
3

w
e
e
k
s
.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

e
n
s
u
re

lo
c
a
l
p
la

n
n
in

g
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

d
e
te

rm
in

e
p
la

n
n
in

g
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s

in
a

ti
m

e
ly

m
a
n
n
e
r.

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

A
lo

w
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

h
u
s

fa
r

a
n
d

u
n
li
k
e
ly

 t
o

b
e

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y

im
p
ro

v
e
d

in
 t

h
e

s
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

.

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

F
in

a
n
c
e

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

s
e
c
u
re

d
 t

o
in

tr
o
d
u
c
e

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t

o
im

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
 t

h
e

fu
tu

re
, 

th
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

w
il
l
n
o
t

b
e

re
fl
e
c
te

d
in

th
e
s
e

fi
g
u
re

s
fo

r
s
o
m

e
 t

im
e
.

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

3
6
.0

0
%

6
0
.0

0
%

5
5
.0

0
%

5
7
.0

0
%

6
3
.5

8
%

6
3
.5

8
%

6
3
.5

8
%

26.00%

36.00%

41.00%

48.00%

0
.0

0
%

1
0
.0

0
%

2
0
.0

0
%

3
0
.0

0
%

4
0
.0

0
%

5
0
.0

0
%

6
0
.0

0
%

7
0
.0

0
%

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

D
C

 T
o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n
g
la

n
d
 T

o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

il
e

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
3
0
/0

1
/0

6

Page 60



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
A

N
D

E
C

O
N

O
M

IC
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

B
V

1
0
9
b

M
in

o
r

P
la

n
n

in
g

A
p

p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

s

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
5
5
.0

0
%

2
0
0
3
/0

4
5
7
.0

0
%

7
1
.0

0
%

7
0
.2

8
%

2
0
0
4
/0

5
5
7
.0

0
%

7
1
.0

0
%

7
0
.2

8
%

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
6
0
.0

0
%

7
1
.0

0
%

7
1
.0

0
%

7
0
.2

8
%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
7
1
.0

0
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
7
1
.0

0
%

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

m
in

o
r

a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

w
it
h
in

8
w

e
e
k
s

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

e
n
s
u
re

lo
c
a
l
p
la

n
n
in

g
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

d
e
te

rm
in

e
p
la

n
n
in

g
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s

in
a

ti
m

e
ly

m
a
n
n
e
r.

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

B
e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t

fo
r 

th
e

y
e
a
r

a
s

a
w

h
o
le

 t
h
o
u
g
h

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ll
y
 t

h
e

la
s
t

q
u
a
rt

e
r'
s

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

is
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
.

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

W
it
h

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
g
re

e
d

a
n
d

s
ta

ff
n
o
w

in
p
la

c
e
,

it
is

h
o
p
e
d
 t

o
s
e
c
u
re

a
y
e
a
r-

ro
u
n
d

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

m
o
re

in
li
n
e

w
it
h
 t

a
rg

e
t.

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

6
0
.0

0
%

7
1
.0

0
%

7
1
.0

0
%

7
1
.0

0
%

60.00%

57.00%

57.00%

55.00%

0
.0

0
%

1
0
.0

0
%

2
0
.0

0
%

3
0
.0

0
%

4
0
.0

0
%

5
0
.0

0
%

6
0
.0

0
%

7
0
.0

0
%

8
0
.0

0
%

20
02

/0
3

20
03

/0
4

20
04

/0
5

20
05

/0
6

Q
3

20
06

/0
7

20
07

/0
8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

D
C

 T
o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n
g
la

n
d
 T

o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

il
e

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
3
0
/0

1
/0

6

Page 61



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
A

N
D

E
C

O
N

O
M

IC
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

B
V

1
0
9
c

P
la

n
n

in
g

A
p

p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
- 

O
th

e
r

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
7
8
%

8
0
%

2
0
0
3
/0

4
7
9
%

8
0
%

8
5
%

8
5
%

2
0
0
4
/0

5
7
7
%

8
2
%

8
5
%

8
5
%

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
8
0
%

8
5
%

8
5
%

8
5
%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
8
5
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
8
5
%

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

'o
th

e
r'

a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

w
it
h
in

8
w

e
e
k
s

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
o

e
n
s
u
re

lo
c
a
l
p
la

n
n
in

g
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

d
e
te

rm
in

e
p
la

n
n
in

g
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s

in
a

ti
m

e
ly

m
a
n
n
e
r.

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-

It
is

h
o
p
e
d
 t

o
a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
is

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 t

a
rg

e
t

b
y
 t

h
e

e
n
d

o
f 

th
e

y
e
a
r

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

0

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

8
0
.0

0
%

78%

79%

77%

80%

8
0
%

8
0
%

8
2
%

8
5
%

8
5
%

8
5
%

7
2
%

7
4
%

7
6
%

7
8
%

8
0
%

8
2
%

8
4
%

8
6
%

2
0
0
2
/0

3
2
0
0
3
/0

4
2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6

Q
3

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

D
C

 T
o
p
  

Q
u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n
g
la

n
d
 T

o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

il
e

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
3
0
/0

1
/0

6

Page 62



K
E

Y
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

2
0
0
5
/0

6

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
A

N
D

E
C

O
N

O
M

IC
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

B
V

2
0
4

P
la

n
n

in
g

A
p

p
e
a
ls

S
e
e

B
e
lo

w

O
u

tt
u

rn
T

a
rg

e
t

D
C

T
o

p
Q

u
a
rt

il
e

A
ll

E
n

g
la

n
d

T
o

p

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

2
0
0
2
/0

3
N

e
w

2
0
0
3
/0

4
1
8
.0

0
%

N
/A

N
/A

2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
9
.0

0
%

2
5
.0

0
%

N
/A

N
/A

2
0
0
5
/0

6
Q

3
2
2
.0

0
%

2
5
.0

0
%

N
/A

N
/A

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
5
.0

0
%

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
5
.0

0
%

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

p
la

n
n
in

g
a
p
p
e
a
l
d
e
c
is

io
n
s

a
ll
o
w

e
d

a
g
a
in

s
t 

th
e

a
u
th

o
ri

ty
's

d
e
c
is

io
n
 t

o
re

fu
s
e

o
n

p
la

n
n
in

g
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
,

a
s

a
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f 

th
e
 t

o
ta

l

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

p
la

n
n
in

g
a
p
p
e
a
ls

a
g
a
in

s
t

re
fu

s
a
ls

o
f

p
la

n
n
in

g
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
.

P
u

rp
o

s
e

T
h
e
re

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

a
re

c
e
n
t

in
c
re

a
s
e

in
 t

h
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

p
la

n
n
in

g
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s

g
o
in

g

to
a
p
p
e
a
l.
 T

h
e
re

is
s
o
m

e
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

o
s
u
g
g
e
s
t 

th
a
t 

th
is

m
a
y

in
p
a
rt

b
e

a
s

a

re
s
u
lt

o
f

lo
c
a
l
p
la

n
n
in

g
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

re
fu

s
in

g
m

o
re

a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s

in
o
rd

e
r 

to
m

e
e
t

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

c
o
n
tr

o
l
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

a
s

s
p
e
c
if
ie

d
in

B
V

1
0
9
. 

O
D

P
M

th
e
re

fo
re

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d

a
n
e
w

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
to

m
e
a
s
u
re

 t
h
e

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

a
p
p
e
a
ls

a
ll
o
w

e
d

a
g
a
in

s
t 

th
e

a
u
th

o
ri

ty
's

d
e
c
is

io
n
 t

o
re

fu
s
e
.

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/t

a
rg

e
t

-
0

C
o

rr
e
c
ti

v
e

a
c
ti

o
n

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

(i
f

re
q

u
ir

e
d

)

T
ra

ff
ic

L
ig

h
t

2
2
.0

0
%

2
5
.0

0
%

2
5
.0

0
%

2
5
.0

0
%

18.00%

22.00%

29.00%

New

2
5
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

5
.0

0
%

1
0
.0

0
%

1
5
.0

0
%

2
0
.0

0
%

2
5
.0

0
%

3
0
.0

0
%

3
5
.0

0
%

20
02

/0
3

20
03

/0
4

20
04

/0
5

20
05

/0
6

Q
3

20
06

/0
7

20
07

/0
8

O
u
tt

u
rn

T
a
rg

e
t

F
IN

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
A

N
D

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

P
A

N
E

L
3
0
/0

1
/0

6

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Report to the Finance & Performance 
Management Scrutiny Panel 
 
Date of meeting: 7 February 2006 
 
Portfolio: Finance & Performance Management 
 
Subject: Quarterly Financial Monitoring 
 
Officer contact for further information: Peter Maddock (01992 - 56 4602) 
 
Democratic Services Officer: S G Hill (01992 – 56 4249) 
 
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 
That the Panel note the financial monitoring report for the Third quarter of 2005/06. 
 
Report: 
 

1. The Panel has within its terms of reference to consider financial monitoring reports on 
key areas of income and expenditure for each portfolio. This is the second quarterly 
report presented and covers the period from 1 April 2005 to 31 December 2005. 

 
2. The panel received the first monitoring report for the period 1 April 2005 to 30 

September 2005 at it’s meeting on 8 November 2005. At that meeting it was agreed 
that the report presented was in the format that the panel required. 

 
3. Salaries monitoring data is presented as well as it represents a large proportion of the 

authorities expenditure and is an area in which large under spends have been seen. 
The salaries data is held by Service rather than by portfolio, although there are clearly 
some Services that are linked closely to particular portfolios.  

 
Main Variances: 
 

4. Comments are provided on the monitoring schedules but a few points are highlighted 
here as they are of particular significance. The salaries schedule shows an under 
spend of some £681,000 (4.6% of budget) and reflects the fact that staff vacancies 
are running at a high level. Revised estimates have been adjusted to reflect the 
ongoing difficulties with recruitment and retention. 

 
5. There is currently a shortfall in income for Land Charges of £75,000, and 

Development Control of £21,000 although this is more than balanced by higher than 
anticipated income for Off-Street Parking (£30,000) and the North Weald Centre 
(£93,000). 

 
6. Expenditure relating to the alteration to the Local Plan which falls under Forward 

planning shows a marked underspend this however is DDF money and much has 
been rephrased into 2006/07 as part of the revised estimate process. 

 
7. The Housing Repairs Fund also shows an underspend, however expenditure tends to 

be heaviest in the final quarter and in fact an overspend is expected by the year end. 
The revised estimate takes this into account and both the Repairs Fund and the 
Housing Revenue Account have significant balances to draw upon to finance this 
expected overspend. 

 
8. There are two overspends to bring to Members attention the first is on Concessionary 

Fares. This is due to the popularity of the amended Transport for London scheme. A 

Agenda Item 7

Page 65



supplementary estimate of £68,000 has been agreed for this. The second relates to 
Waste Management where due to the delay in the wheelie bin roll out and the 
substantial increases in oil prices, black sack costs have exceeded the original  

Page 66



P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

S
A

L
A

R
IE

S

D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

2
0
0
5

-
S

A
L

A
R

IE
S

2
0
0
5
/0

6
2
0
0
4
/0

5

S
E

R
V

IC
E

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

B
U

D
G

E
T

V
A

R
IA

T
IO

N
E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
B

U
D

G
E

T
V

A
R

IA
T

IO
N

T
O

3
1
/1

2
/0

5
P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

F
R

O
M

B
U

D
G

E
T

T
O

3
1
/1

2
/0

4
P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

F
R

O
M

B
U

D
G

E
T

(O
R

IG
IN

A
L

)
(O

R
IG

IN
A

L
)

(O
R

IG
IN

A
L

)
(O

R
IG

IN
A

L
)

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

%
£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

%

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
2
2
7

2
2
1

3
2
7
8

2
8
9

-4

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
A

U
D

IT
  

*
1
4
7

1
5
0

-2
1
3
0

1
4
8

-1
2

H
R

&
P

M
U

2
5
3

2
6
1

-3
2
4
8

2
6
1

-5

P
O

L
IC

Y
U

N
IT

*
5
0
5

5
9
6

-1
5

4
7
3

4
9
1

-4

L
E

G
A

L
,A

D
M

IN
&

E
S

T
A

T
E

S
1
,0

3
4

1
,1

4
4

-1
0

9
8
1

1
,0

4
6

-6

F
IN

A
N

C
E

  
*

1
,9

7
2

1
,9

7
3

0
1
,8

2
6

1
,9

0
4

-4

IN
F

O
,C

O
M

M
&

T
E

C
H

4
9
7

5
8
0

-1
4

4
3
8

5
0
7

-1
4

H
O

U
S

IN
G

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
*

2
,0

5
6

2
,1

5
6

-5
1
,9

5
6

2
,0

4
6

-4

P
U

B
L

IC
W

O
R

K
S

U
N

IT
1
,2

2
4

1
,2

2
0

0
9
7
2

1
,1

5
9

-1
6

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
*

1
,5

5
9

1
,6

7
0

-7
2
,0

7
2

2
,1

3
3

-3

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
  

*
1
,5

1
1

1
,5

5
5

-3
1
,2

5
4

1
,3

2
6

-5

L
E

IS
U

R
E

*
3
,2

6
3

3
,4

0
3

-4
3
,0

6
2

3
,2

5
5

-6

T
O

T
A

L
1
4
,2

4
8

1
4
,9

2
9

-5
1
3
,6

9
0

1
4
,5

6
5

-6

*
A

g
e
n
c
y

c
o
s
ts

a
re

in
c
lu

d
e
d

in
 t

h
e

s
a
la

ri
e
s

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

.

Page 67



P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

C
IV

IL
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

&
M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

M
a
jo

r
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

it
e
m

s
:

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

0
4
/0

5

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d

3
2
7

2
7
2

1
8
0

2
8
2

-9
2

-3
3
.8

A
p
p
a
re

n
t

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d

p
a
rt

ly
d
u
e
 t

o
s
li
p
p
a
g
e

o
n

D
D

F
it
e
m

 f
o
r

N
th

.
L
o
u
g
h
to

n
lo

rr
y

b
a
n

(£
2
6
k
),

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 t

re
e

w
o
rk

s
 f

o
r

E
C

C
a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
a
t

y
e
a
r

e
n
d

(£
5
6
k
),

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

E
n
v
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d

(£
7
k
)

O
ff

S
tr

e
e
t

P
a
rk

in
g

5
2
5

3
9
0

3
7
5

3
2
6

-1
5

-3
.8

O
n

S
tr

e
e
t

P
a
rk

in
g

3
1
2

2
1
0

2
0
5

2
0
7

-5
-2

.4

1
,1

6
4

8
7
2

7
6
0

8
1
5

-1
1
2

-1
2
.8

M
a
jo

r
in

c
o
m

e
it
e
m

s
:

O
ff

S
tr

e
e
t

P
a
rk

in
g

-1
,0

2
1

-7
6
6

-7
9
6

-7
7
8

-3
0

-3
.9

T
h
e

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
in

c
o
m

e
g
e
n
e
ra

te
d

fr
o
m

th
e

c
h
a
n
g
e

in
 t

a
ri

ff
a
p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

u
n
d
e
re

s
ti
m

a
te

d
.

O
n

S
tr

e
e
t

P
a
rk

in
g

-4
2
0

-3
1
5

-3
1
0

-2
5
9

5
1
.6

-1
,4

4
1

-1
,0

8
1

-1
,1

0
6

-1
,0

3
7

-2
5

-2
.3

T
h
ir

d
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

Page 68



P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

W
E

L
L
B

E
IN

G

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

M
a
jo

r
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

it
e
m

s
:

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

0
4
/0

5

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

G
ra

n
ts

 t
o

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 G

ro
u
p
s

1
2
5

8
2

3
0

2
2

-5
2

-6
3
.4

O
n
ly

£
1
6
K

re
m

a
in

s
u
n
c
o
m

m
it
te

d
.

T
h
e

a
p
p
a
re

n
t

u
n
d
e
r

s
p
e
n
d

is
d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e

la
g

b
e
tw

e
e
n

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l
a
n
d

re
le

a
s
e

o
f

g
ra

n
ts

.

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
S

e
c
to

r
S

u
p
p
o
rt

1
5
5

1
4
0

1
3
9

1
4
5

-1
-0

.7

C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 F
a
re

s
2
9
1

1
9
0

2
6
0

1
7
2

7
0

3
6
.8

A
m

e
n
d
e
d

T
fL

s
c
h
e
m

e
 f

a
r

m
o
re

p
o
p
u
la

r

th
a
n

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
.

C
S

B
 G

ro
w

th
o
f

£
4
5
,0

0
0
,

5
7
1

4
1
2

4
2
9

3
3
9

1
7

4
.1

a
n
d

D
D

F
o
f

£
2
3
,0

0
0
,

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
.

M
a
jo

r
in

c
o
m

e
it
e
m

s
:

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
&

R
e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n

-1
0
7

-1
0
7

-1
1
6

-9
-9

-8
.4

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

in
c
o
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
is

y
e
a
r

d
u
e
 t

o

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
A

c
t

2
0
0
3
.

H
a
c
k
n
e
y

C
a
rr

ia
g
e
s

-1
0
5

-7
9

-8
7

-1
0
0

-8
-1

0
.1

-2
1
2

-1
8
6

-2
0
3

-1
0
9

-1
7

-9
.1

T
h
ir

d
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

Page 69



P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
- 

F
IN

A
N

C
E

&
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

M
a
jo

r
in

c
o
m

e
it
e
m

s
:

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

0
4
/0

5

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

In
d
u
s
tr

ia
l
E

s
ta

te
s

-8
3
9

-8
2
4

-8
4
7

-7
9
0

-2
3

-2
.8

D
ir

e
c
t

c
o
m

p
a
ri

s
o
n

a
g
a
in

s
t

0
4
/0

5

is
d
if
fi
c
u
lt

a
s

a
n
e
w

s
y
s
te

m
w

a
s

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
in

E
s
ta

te
s

in
0
4
/0

5
c
a
u
s
in

g

in
v
o
ic

e
s
 t

o
b
e

ra
s
ie

d
la

te
r.

L
a
n
d

&
P

ro
p
e
rt

y
-2

1
3

-1
1
3

-1
0
7

-9
8

6
5
.3

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
fr

o
m

D
a
v
id

L
lo

y
d

C
e
n
tr

e
d
o
w

n

-1
,0

5
2

-9
3
7

-9
5
4

-8
8
8

-1
7

-1
.8

T
h
ir

d
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

Page 70



P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
S

U
P

P
O

R
T

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
&

 I
C

T

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

M
a
jo

r
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

it
e
m

s
:

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

0
4
/0

5

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y

5
0
3

4
3
3

3
9
1

3
8
7

-4
2

-9
.7

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
s

d
o
w

n
o
n

b
u
d
g
e
t

T
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
s

2
2
4

1
6
8

1
4
5

1
3
8

-2
3

-1
3
.7

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
s

d
o
w

n
o
n

b
u
d
g
e
t

7
2
7

6
0
1

5
3
6

5
2
5

-6
5

-1
0
.8

M
a
jo

r
in

c
o
m

e
it
e
m

s
:

In
c
o
m

e
d
o
w

n
a
g
a
in

s
t

0
4
/0

5
a
n
d

b
u
d
g
e
t

L
o
c
a
l
L
a
n
d

C
h
a
rg

e
s

-4
7
5

-3
5
6

-2
8
1

-3
1
9

7
5

2
1
.1

d
u
e
 t

o
im

p
a
c
t

o
f

p
e
rs

o
n
a
l
s
e
a
rc

h
e
s
.

T
h
ir

d
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

Page 71



P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

M
a
jo

r
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

it
e
m

s
:

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

0
4
/0

5

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

R
e
fu

s
e

C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n

1
,5

6
8

1
,0

4
4

1
,1

4
2

9
6
4

9
8

9
.4

D
e
la

y
in

w
h
e
e
le

d
b
in

ro
ll
o
u
t

c
a
u
s
in

g
in

c
re

a
s
e

in

b
la

c
k

s
a
c
k

u
s
a
g
e

(£
5
9
k
),

a
g
re

e
d

in
c
re

a
s
e

in

p
u
b
li
c
it
y

s
p
e
n
d

(£
1
1
k
),

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r
p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

fo
r

tr
a
n
s
fe

r 
to

re
v
is

e
d

la
n
d
fi
ll

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

o
E

C
C

le
v
e
l

(£
4
3
k
)

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t

d
e
fa

u
lt
s

a
n
d

in
fl
a
ti
o
n
a
ry

in
c
re

a
s
e

(-

£
2
0
k
)

S
tr

e
e
t

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
1
,1

5
5

7
7
3

7
8
6

7
3
7

1
3

1
.7

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
o
f

A
4
1
4

re
q
u
e
s
te

d
b
y

E
C

C

re
im

b
u
rs

e
m

e
n
t

o
f 

th
is

is
s
ti
ll

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g

R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g

1
,1

2
7

7
9
0

7
8
4

5
6
5

-6
-0

.8

3
,8

5
0

2
,6

0
7

2
,7

1
2

2
,2

6
6

1
0
5

4
.0

M
a
jo

r
in

c
o
m

e
it
e
m

s
:

R
e
fu

s
e

C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n

-2
8
4

-1
4
2

-3
1

-2
5
3

1
1
1

7
8
.2

T
ip

p
in

g
a
w

a
y

c
h
a
rg

e
.

A
m

o
u
n
t

is
re

s
id

u
a
l

fo
r

0
4
/0

5
.

N
o
th

in
g

y
e
t

re
0
5
/0

6
,

b
u
t 

fu
ll

y
e
a
r 

fi
g
u
re

s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
.

R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g

-3
5
2

-2
0
1

-1
2
2

-1
5
0

7
9

3
9
.3

R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g

c
re

d
it

c
la

im
s

q
u
a
rt

e
r

in
a
rr

e
a
rs

a
t

a
p
p
ro

x
.

£
1
0
0
k

p
e
r

q
u
a
rt

e
r.

-6
3
6

-3
4
3

-1
5
3

-4
0
3

1
9
0

5
5
.4

T
h
ir

d
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

Page 72



P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

H
O

U
S

IN
G

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

M
a
jo

r
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

it
e
m

s
:

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

0
4
/0

5

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 T

e
n
a
n
c
ie

s
3
7
8

3
5
4

3
7
8

3
6
4

2
4

6
.8

T
h
e
re

a
re

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

H
o
u
s
in

g
R

e
p
a
ir

s
5
,1

7
5

3
,6

6
1

3
,2

0
1

3
,4

8
4

-4
6
0

-1
2
.6

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
R

e
p
a
ir

s
b
u
d
g
e
ts

. 
T

h
e

la
rg

e
s
t

b
e
in

g
a
ll

a
re

a
s

s
p
e
c
ia

l
w

o
rk

s
.

S
p
e
c
ia

l 
It

e
m

s
1
,2

9
2

9
6
9

9
0
8

9
3
2

-6
1

-6
.3

6
,8

4
5

4
,9

8
4

4
,4

8
7

4
,7

8
0

-4
9
7

-1
0
.0

M
a
jo

r
in

c
o
m

e
it
e
m

s
:

R
e
n
ta

l
in

c
o
m

e
a
b
o
v
e

b
u
d
g
e
t

d
u
e
 t

o

G
ro

s
s

D
w

e
ll
in

g
R

e
n
t

-2
0
,7

2
7

-1
5
,5

4
5

-1
5
,8

7
2

-1
5
,1

7
8

-3
2
7

-2
.1

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

c
o
u
n
c
il

h
o
u
s
e

s
a
le

s
fa

ll
in

g

b
e
lo

w
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
le

v
e
l.

T
h
ir

d
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

Page 73



P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

L
E

IS
U

R
E

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

M
a
jo

r
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

it
e
m

s
:

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

0
4
/0

5

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

M
u
s
e
u
m

1
0
8

8
3

7
4

8
2

-9
-1

0
.8

P
la

y
g
ro

u
n
d
s

&
 O

p
e
n

S
p
a
c
e
s

1
8
2

1
3
7

1
3
8

9
5

1
0
.7

N
o
rt

h
W

e
a
ld

C
e
n
tr

e
2
8
9

2
2
4

1
8
7

1
4
3

-3
7

-1
6
.5

S
o
m

e
s
li
p
p
a
g
e

o
n

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
,

li
k
e
ly

to
b
e
 f

u
ll
y

s
p
e
n
t

b
y

y
e
a
r

e
n
d
.

5
7
9

4
4
4

3
9
9

3
2
0

-4
5

-1
0
.1

M
a
jo

r
in

c
o
m

e
it
e
m

s
:

N
o
rt

h
W

e
a
ld

C
e
n
tr

e
-1

,2
9
1

-9
0
9

-1
,0

0
2

-9
2
9

-9
3

-1
0
.2

In
c
o
m

e
fr

o
m

b
o
th

e
v
e
n
ts

a
n
d

m
a
rk

e
t

u
p

o
n

b
u
d
g
e
t.

 G
e
n
e
ra

l
re

n
ts

in
li
n
e

w
it
h

b
u
d
g
e
t

b
u
t

£
2
6
K

u
p

o
n

0
4
/0

5
.

N
B

L
e
is

u
re

 F
a
c
il
it
ie

s
h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

e
x
c
lu

d
e
d

a
s
 t

h
e
y

a
re

s
u
b
je

c
t 

to
a

s
e
p
a
ra

te
m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g

re
p
o
rt

 t
o

C
a
b
in

e
t.

C
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

w
il
l
b
e

g
iv

e
n
 t

o
 t

h
e

b
e
s
t

w
a
y

o
f

p
ro

v
id

in
g

m
o
n
it
o
ri

n
g

d
a
ta

o
n
c
e

e
x
te

rn
a
l
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

is
in

p
la

c
e
.

T
h
ir

d
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

Page 74



P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

&
E

C
O

N
O

M
IC

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

M
a
jo

r
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

it
e
m

s
:

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

0
4
/0

5

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

F
o
rw

a
rd

P
la

n
n
in

g
3
1
2

2
5
9

3
5

1
3

-2
2
4

-8
6
.5

A
 f

u
ll

y
e
a
r

D
D

F
it
e
m

o
f

£
2
8
3
K

w
a
s

in
c
lu

d
e
d

fo
r

L
o
c
a
l
P

la
n

A
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

.T
h
ir

d
q
u
a
rt

e
r

b
u
d
g
e
t 

fo
r 

th
is

is
£
2
1
5
k

o
f

w
h
ic

h
o
n
ly

£
1
6
K

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

s
p
e
n
t

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

C
o
n
tr

o
l

1
5
4

1
3
0

7
8

1
0
4

-5
2

-4
0
.0

T
h
is

in
c
lu

d
e
s

a
 t

h
ir

d
q
u
a
rt

e
r

b
u
d
g
e
t

o
f

£
2
6
K

fo
r

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

Im
a
g
in

g
w

h
ic

h

re
m

a
in

s
u
n
s
p
e
n
t.

B
u
il
d
in

g
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
F

e
e

E
a
rn

in
g

7
7

5
4

5
6

1
1
2

2
3
.7

5
4
3

4
4
3

1
6
9

2
2
9

-2
7
4

-6
1
.9

M
a
jo

r
in

c
o
m

e
it
e
m

s
:

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

C
o
n
tr

o
l

-5
5
0

-4
1
2

-3
9
1

-3
1
5

2
1

5
.1

B
u
il
d
in

g
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
F

e
e

E
a
rn

in
g

-5
2
4

-3
9
3

-3
9
1

-4
5
0

2
0
.5

-1
,0

7
4

-8
0
5

-7
8
2

-7
6
5

2
3

2
.9

T
h
ir

d
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank


